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1,
CHAPT&R I.
PBGPLE ARD GOVERNMENTS AT RLD RIVER, PRIOR TO 1869-1870.

"The circumstances and incidents attending the
creation of the Province of NManitoba have some~
times been related in a manner tending to cause
#isunderstanding, prejudice, and éven ill will
between east and west and between the,great races

" which inhabit the Dominion, A few facts out of
historical perspective, a2 few unsupported myths,
along with some undound legal and constitutional
doetriné have given an unfortunate bias to the
opinions of not & few. The mists qf prejudice
which ¢onfused and distorted the vision of cone
tending parties two generations age, have been
partially dispelled, but old beliefs and legends, .
true or false, are notoriously hard to eradicate
eeeeOne of the first steps to national unity and
national amity, however, is an understanding of
actual facts of our history as a Dominion. When
some erroneous ideas are revised we may hope to
achieve much in the way of better feeling and
sounder appreciation of the quelities and aspirat-
ions and points of view of our fellow citizens."(l)

| The paragraph quoted above forms an apt 1ntroduct10n
to the present diécussion. The data herewith presented,
and the deductions drawn therefrom, will, it is hoped, tend
to modify certain "erroneous ideas", namely; thet the dist-.
- urbances at.Red River were a rebellion; that the shooting
of Thomas Scott was a murder, not an execution; that the
Hudson's Bay Company and the Roman Catholic Church were
disinterested onlookers. As a background for the proper

understanding’of‘the events connected with the insurrection,

(1) Lang. Manitoba Enters Confederation. page 1l.



PEOPLE AND GOVERNMENTS.

a brief description of the populatién and'governmeni of‘
the district of Assiniboia has been found necessary.
| The first census of the Province of NVanitobs in 1870
showed a total population of 11,963 persons. Of these
1563 were white; 15563 were Indiané; and 9,848 were letis,
either #nglish or French. Of the white population slightly
less than one-half had been vorn in the North-West; 294
were Canadians, as ﬁhempeaple who canme frgm the eastern
paft of Canadg‘wére then and for a2 long time sfterward
called; 69 had come from the United States; 412.were'frem
Great.Britain or Ireland; 15 had come from France; and 28
were from other countries/ (1) Since there was no substante
ial movement of population in 1870, it may be»assumed that
the figuwes for the population of Red River would be
approximately the same in 1869, The Metis were not only
the largest group in the district but they were also the
oldest, if we except the Indian tribes, and the only group
capable of united action. An admirer of that pwople haé
described them thus:
-"Les Nétis~fran9ais‘pnt donec le droit de prbclamer
qu'ils sont les ain€s au Nord-Ouest, et que lors-
que le Canada fut cddé a l'Angleterre, ils
gouvernaient l'6Guest, par l'ascendant qu'ils
avaient acquis sur les sauvages avec lesquels ils

étaient apparent€s....le. Métis est par’;empéfam-
ent, hospitalier jusqu'd l'exces....le geénérosité

TN

(1) Checked from Census Returns, Manitoba, 1870.
" (It is noted that the additions are not correct.)



PEOPLE AND GOVERKVIENTS.

des Létis est proverbiale....Un autre point

caracteristique de la race, c'est 1l'endurance,

1z patience dans les épreuves et un talent

merveilleux: d'appendre les langues....Ltattache

ement profond des Métis & la foikleurs peres,"(1)
Another szuthority, less favarablgfimpressed,:maintaimed
that they were grestly influenced by their priests, and
that they were

*illiterate, improvident, trained in the use of

arms and accustomed to united action, attached

to paternal government because of their credule

ous good nature and improvidence."(2)
For all practical purposes, the Fetis constituted the only
important group in the coclony. The census figures gquoted
previously,would show that the so-called HEnglish settlers
were of mixed nationalities, and it would seem t6 be true
that they were, in political matters,

#distractingly diversified, without unity in ény
issue that dominated the imsurrection."(3)

. Amdngét'them were to be found supporters of at least four
aiterﬁﬂtive gavernﬁﬁnta for the Settlemént, namely,; rule,
és;herétaforg, by the Hudson's Bayzcompany;'anﬂexatibn

to the United States; establishment of a Crawn Colony; and

union with Canada. Those who favored the last-mentioned

{1) Prud'homme. Riel et la Naissance du Manitoba.

(2) Mertin., The Red River Settlement. p.63.

(3) Ivid. p.64.
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plan, although numerically not great, were, by all accounts,
the most active and vociferous. |

It may be admitted that Sir John A. ¥acdonald and his
ministers, and their friends and officials at Red River,
made mistakes in cénnection with the transfer of the North-
West to Canada, and that Louis Riel and his friends and
sdvisers at Fort Garry were not without fault in their
policy of opposition to the proposed changes. Lefore
examination is made, however, of those ﬁiseanc@ptions
which are more intimately associated with the events qf
"The Trouble", it should be noted shat the introduction
of the new government paralleled,vin timé. a ch&nge in
ﬂhe economic development ofvthe éettlement, and, as the
"old-timers“ witnessed the coming af the newer modes of
‘life, they resented the innovations. In 1859 the license
of the Hudson's Bay Company to govern the west had expired,
and, as no renewal had been granted, during the interregnum
of ten years (1859-1869) no one had unchallenged legal K
authority. Although the Company's governS;; McTavish,
acted as head of the Settlement and endeavoﬁred to dispense
Justice, neithef he nor his Council carried the -same weight
as before, and misdemeanors, such as that of Dr. 8chultz, (1)

ox—————

(1) for details of this incident, sae:pageé 25 - 26.
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went unpunished. The position of the Company was further"
weakened  in 1863, by the news of the sale to the Intei-
‘national Pinance Corporation ,(1) an organization composed
of men having no personal inﬁerestS-in the servants and -
officers of the old Company, but esger for profits. Great
uneaainesé prevailed in the minds of the settlers concern-
ing the titles to their lands, which were generally held

by long-term leases from the Company. 'Kéw methods of
transportation were being introduced as the old boate
brigades were disappesaring, along with the Red River carts.,
The last great buffalo-hunt, in 1869, was a failure, dué

te the scarcity of animals. The coming of the Tirst news-
paper brought the settler more elosely into touch with the
outside world, and disturbed him in his political associat--
ions, especiallvahen the editors discussed questions of
.annexation to the United Btates or Canada. The shrill
whistle af.the‘éteamaboat on the river and fthe noise of
>the pxinting»prsss disturbed the tranquillity of the old
settler; the disappearance of the buffalo eaused him and
his to feel the pangs of hunger; the coming of the surveyors,

‘with their new method of blocking out the land in squares

(1) Among the leading members of the Society were
- included: Edward Watkin; Lyall; Glynn; Newmark.
This body existed only a few months until the
Hudson's Bay Company was reorganized under Sirv
Edmund Head, Richard Potter, Eden Colville,
Bdaward Watkin and Sir Curtis Lampson.
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instead of allowing the old river-survey, brought fear of
loss of the farm which had belonged to the fémily for
generations., Urged by these considerations, they looked
around for a leader to express their discoﬁtent”and to
voice their desire to keep things as they were. They
found that leader in Louis Riel, the'grandson of Marianne
Gaboury, the first white woman settler 4t Red River. (1)
Government under the Governor and Council of Assinib-
oia was the fifth in the series of‘n;ne governments that
the present Province of Wanitoba has had, By 1869 the
rule of the Council of Assiniboia had passed through its
tiret phase, the Selkirk Pgriod, and was approaching the
end of the Company period.(2) The Governor of the Territ-
ory was an appointed officer of the Hudson's Bay Company.
To assist him in his work, and to ad#iae him on all
- matters on which he desired advice, was the duty of the
Council. |
*Prior to 1835 thentotal membership of the
Councils of Assiniboia, even including the Gov-
ernor or Agent, never exceeded seven., In fact
the number at any meeting was never greater than
five., Though even after 1835 the Council contine
ued to be what Captain Bulger celled zan 'Appointed
Council', yet the EBonstitution of the Council of

Assiniboia underwent a profound change in the
middle thirties....There is a great gulf between

D o]

(1) Charette. Was Riel a Rebel ? p. 3.
(2) Oliver. Canadian North West. p. 20.
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the Council of May 4, 1832, and that of Feb,1lZ2,
1835, although George Simpson was President of
both. At the former were present five members,
at the latter, fifteen....lt was the introduction
of Representative government."(1) :
' The members were appointed by the Compeny at the suggest-
ion of the Governor or on the petition of a number of the
inhabitants and a few men of distinetion in the commun-
ity were sometimes invited to join by the other Couneill-
ors. (2) As pioneers the Governor and Council laid the
foundation of prairie legislation and were the first to
frame the general measures of the public‘welfére of what
is new Western Canada. |

' The change in the constitution of the Council in
1835 has been referred to ae the introduction of represe
éhtative government. In so far as the new members or
representatives of the settlers were invited by the old
Councillors who were appointed by the Company, the state-
ment may be regarded as correct, but there was no system
of eléétien.TBThe new arrivals in the colony from either.

. Great Britain, United States or Canada, this lack of

franchise was a serious disability, and many bitter

(1) Ibid. pp. 35-36.

(2) Ivid. pp. 32. Quotes evidence of Sir George
Simpson before the 8elect Committee of the H.B.C.
Feb.26, 1887. .
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complaints were registered.(l) Chief among the complain-
ants was Dr% Schultz, a Canadian physician, merchant and
newspaper man, who from the time of his arr;val'carried
on a vigorous anti*Cqmpany campaign through the medium of
the newspaper, the Nor-Wester.(2) 0n the contrary a
' resident and contemporary historian who was always eha#it-
able in his Jjudgment of the Company's rule, has stated;
%"When the people of the North-West were represent-
ed as groaning under a yoke of oppression, they
were in reality enjoying a degree of liverty and
happiness unparalleled in any other country."(3)
In support of his statement he showed that one .
opposing vote in the Council was sufficient to kiil any
motion; that the rate of taxation on ‘any merchandise was
only féﬁr‘percent,‘and that justice savored more of
arbitration than of mere attention to technicalities of
the law.
"Had the settlers been the only parties with
whom the Hudson's Bay Compeny had to deal all
would ‘have been well; but when thelparties from
abroad came to Red River and sowed the seeds of
discontent amongst the inhabitants; and when

those firebrands led the way by breasking end
defying the laws, then the government of

{1) Nor-Wester editorial. Apr.28, 1860.

(2) See copies of Eaf«Weéger, Feb.5; Mar.6; Nay 8;
‘ June 26; July 3, 1869,

(3) Beggs,'creatian of ¥enitoba. p.l.



9.
PEOPLE AND GOVERNMENTS.

Assiniboia was found to be weak."(1)

Reports of the weakness of the.Company rule must have
reached the ears of the British Government, as it is found
that one of the reasons for appointing a Select Committee
of the House of Commons in 1857 to enquire into the affairs
of the Hudsoﬁ's Bay Company,was that it might ascertain
the present condition of ithe settlement at Red River, That
the Committee was not altogether favoraﬁly impressed)was
proven by its recommendation that the districts of Red
River and Saskatchewan might be ceded to Canada on "equit-
‘able principles",

An explanation of the exceptional weakness of the
Council during the years preceding the insurrection may
be found in the dissatisfaction and discontent of the
Hudson's Eay Company officers and servants in the Northe
West. While a distinction should always be drawn between
the Compan& as a governing body and as a trading body, the
fact that the members of the Council were in many instances
interested fur traders, influenced their judgménts and
coloured their opinions. The seeds of discontent were
sown ih the terms of the Union of 1821 and were brought
to fruition by the action of the London Partners in 1863,
when, without consulting the Winter partners, the Hudson's

Bay Company was sold to the .International Financial Society,

(1) Ibid. p.3.
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Limited, on terms that failed to protect the iﬁiereéts
of the active officers and traders of the 6ld Company in
the North<West. Beckles Willson, known for his intimate
association with the Company, lists as sources of griev-
ance amongst the: Winter partners the facts that since
1821 the remuﬁeration of every class of servant, excepting
that to which the commissioned officer belonged, had:
advanced , and that the success of the: Wintering partners
had 1ncreased the market value of the Hudson's Bay Company
stock.,. This letter had damaged the Winter pariners becsuse
it had brought many new shareholders. Moreover, in 1863
the Sleeping Partners, who were merely stock-holders and
toek no active part in the trading, sold out their intersest
at 300% profit on the par value of their stock, and the
néminal value of the capital of the Company became
£2,000,000 instead of £500,000, by a mere arbitrary act
and without any addition to its assets. The ¥inter Part-
ners knew nothing of this until after the transaction had
been completed, and were then told that it was none of
their business, as the Deed Poll, which defined their
relations to the shareholders, remained unchanged, The
game writer has suggested that the real reason for selling
out the Hudson's Bey éompany.in 1863 lay in the desire of

Csnada for a road and telegraph line to Eritish Columbia.
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After ﬂetailing~thé negotiations between the EBritish,
Canadian, and Hudson's Eay Company governing bodies, he
stated that
| - "Had Sir BEdmund Head and his colleagues in

London seen fit instantly to make terms with

the wintering partners in 1864..,.there-would

have been no Riel Rebellion."(l)
No evzdence neeﬂ be submitted to show that the transfer of
the Territory to Canada by the Company was dlspleasing to'
the active traders, because after 1870 the fur~trade was
removed from monepollstie control, and the Winter partners
were excluded from meny of their former districts. The
preaénce in the Red River District of these exaéperaied
officers of the Hudson's Ray Company, createdJa formidable
difficulty‘ﬁhen Cadada sent‘her representatives to éSsume
the reins of authority. |

It should now be fazrly clear that the difflculties

‘commnn to all unions or annexations weuld be increased by
the conditlons peculiar to Red River Settlement. Whlle the
éreé tb be taken over was treméndous, the popuiatibn'was
émﬁll'and heterogeneous. The gréat majority of the people
belonged;to a éroup unlike any other with which the Canadian
deerhment had ever dealt. The Metis, being neither pure

British; French, nor Indian stock)but a mixture of all

(1) willson. Strathcona. p.129.
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three, presented a real problem. Economic changes

had given rise to fe&lings of unrest and fear. Added

to these'facts; the government in the district had been
exceptionally week in the latter years of its administrate
ion, and its officers in 1869 ﬁere;meh:Who felt that

they had not been treated fairly in the negotiations for

the transfer of,the Territory to Canada.



CHAPTER 1I1I.
13..

CANADIAN INTERHST IN RED RIVER.
The people of Canada had become inierested in the
~ North-West some years before 1869 for many different
reasons. In 1856'the'Government head considered=uéing
it as a districet to which criminals might be exiled.
A year later the organization df‘Minnéaéta had aroused
Canadian opinion to the possibilities of their own vast-
hinterland. The discovery of gold in British Columbia
in 1858 once again brought the Hudson's Ray Company
territory to the attention of the people of Eastern
Canada, but the problems of transportation presented
almost insurmountable barriers to possession. However,
a newspaper, the Nor-Wester was started at Red River to
feed Canadian interest in the North-West. WNeanwhile
politicians in Canada, espegially George Brown and D'Arcy
McGee, continued to keep the possibilities of the West
in the public mind. Stories of vast, rolling plains of
fertile soil and uaﬁerad by many streams, captured the
imaginations of the Canadian farmers and interest in Red |
River as a paesible kranary' for the Dominion was aroused,
The failure of the first Atlantic cable in 1858 revived
the prospect of a short cable across the Behring Sea, and
led to renewed interest. In 1864 the American Congress
repealed the Bonding Act, which had permitted the importQk
ation of British goods into Red River, through the United
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States, free of duty. This forced the settlers at Red
River to look for a Canadian route. That same year the
American Government also withdrew the troops which had
' been stationed at Pembina to preiect the line of
communication against the raids of the Sioux Indians.
There was, therefore, no security in transportation
and communication between Red River and the Unitéd States,(l)
For these and other reasens the three governments came
to an agreement in 1868, whereby the Hudson's Bay Company
wes to surrender its charter to the Fritish Crown in rets
urn for certain considerations, and the Crown was to tfansf
fer the territory of Rupert's lLand to Canada upon suitable
terms. - The Hudson's Bay Company hed at first demanded
control of & great améunt of land and a share in the minersal
resources, but the Canadian Government representatives, 8ir
Gsargasmg'cartiez'and Honorable Wiliiam mcﬁeugall, would
not sgree. The arrangements, as accepted by the Company
on April 9, and ratified by a joint address of the. Benate
‘and House of Commons of Canada on May 29 and 31, 1869, wérs
that the Company should receive a cash payment of £300,000.,
"be allowed to retain all posts or stations then eoccupied,
aﬁd,claim dne*twentieth part of all land surveyéd for
settlement within the fertile belt within fifty years of

——————————

(1) Doughty. Awakening of Canadian Interest.
" C.H.A. Annual Report 1928. pp.5-12.
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the date of transfer. (1) It was anticipated that the
formal transfer of the Territa;ies to Canada, by an
Order-in-~Council of Her Majesty's Government, would be
made within the course of the next few months, and s
tentative date for December 1, 1869, seems to have
been agreed upon.(2) .

.It would appear that, even before the passing of
the Rupsert's Land Act, Ganada‘had been preparing to take
-over the Territories. In 1868 a plague of grass~hoppers
was followed by a crop failure,and the buffalo hungers
did not succeed in Securing an adequate supply of meat
for the winter. This meant famine and distress in the.
district of Red River. An appeal for aid from without
met with some measure of Success, the. Hudson's Bay Company
giving $8.§Oovand another $40,Qoobb¢ing subseribed in
England, United States and Canada. An incident connected
with the Canadian donation reveals the general lack of
knowledge and interest in the affairs of Red River by the
pecple in the eastern pa:t of the Dominion. Q.M.Grant,w
1éter principal of Queen's University, but then a leading .

clergyman of Halifax, who took up a collection in aid of .

(1) Oliver. Op. cit. pp. 957 - 958,
(2) Sessional Papers, 1870. p.64.
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the sufferers in the West, wrote: "I could have collect-
ed the money quite as easily, and the givers would have ¢
given quite as intelligently, had the sufferers been in
GCentral Abyssinia®.(1) At the same time the Canadian
Government undertoek to survey a road from the Lake of
the Woods to Fort Garry, and, as far as possible, to
employ men from Red River, paying for the labour in
provisions. |

This plan of relief by the Deminion, at the very
time when negetiations were being carried on in London
for transfer of the Territories to Caneda, called forth
‘an indignant complaint by theyﬁampany.(z) Nevertheless,
a survey pariy under John A. Snow started to work in
September, 1868, but met with difficulties from the
outset. - This survey party became a contributing cause
of dissatisfaction at Red River, when Snow employed the
half«breeds at £5 par month, paying in flour at £3.12sh.
per barrel, and the price per barrel in the Settlement
was only £3. Among the Canadian surveyors, some of Whom
tried to buy land from the Indians in and around Oak Point,
was ¥r. Charles Vair, who ridiculed in print the Red River

families which had entertained him., The surveyors whom

(1) Parkin., Sir John A. Nacdonald. p.155.
(2) willson. The Great Company. p.491.
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Canada had sent before claim to the Territory had been
established, appropriated land for their friends and
themselves in great amounts, and itiappeared as though
the settlers in Red River were about to be 'swamped' by
a Canada pa?ty. The appointment, as the first Lieuten-
ant-Governor of the new Territory, afAHanarable William
MeDougall, who had been one of two Canadian government
representat;vas in the negotiations at London, &nd who
was a2lso responsible, as Kinister of Public Works, for
the survey party, caused great dissatisfaction at Red
River, (1)

It may have been that the sending of the survey
party was not a first move on the part of the Canadian
Government tewards taking over the Tarritor;es; it m%y
have been énly an act of 'sweet charity'; but the results
were disappeinting to all c@ncerned. At that particular
time, and under those ecircumstences, it formed one of
that series of mistakes caused by "the unaccountable and
.culpable blundering of the Canadian Government".(2) An
eye witness of the events enacted at Red River in the
period of transition later referred to the sending out of

the survey party as the spark which started the rebellion. (3)

'(1) Beggs. ©p. cit. p.28.
{(2) Bryce. Remarkable History of the H.B.C. p.46l.

* (3) 0'Donnell. Manitoba As 1 Saw It. p.29.
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‘There appesrs to be a general unanimity of opinion
among writers on the subject of the Red River disturbances,
as to the many mistakes made by the Canadian Government in
acquiring the Territories. In executing the details of
‘the annexation several very grave errors were committed,
which could only partially be excused by the absolute
ignorance at Ottawa of the situation, Among the import-
ant causes of the insurrection were:

e %A decrepit government with the executive €fficer
sick; & rebellious and chronically dissatisfied
Metis element; & government at Ottawa far removed
by distance, and committing with unvarying regul-

- aridy blunder after blunder; a greedy and foreign
c¢abal planning to seize the country; and a secret
Jesuitical plot to keep the governor from action
and to incite the fiery Xetis to revelt.®(1l)

eI wouid seem that arrangements were conducte

- ed with extraordinary want of judgment, and that
the troubles which subsequently arose were mater-
ially increased, if indeed they were not altogether
brought about thereby."(2)

It would appear, therefore, that'thé Canadian interest in
Red River, aroused in the'fifties® by the westward expan~
sien of the United States and the discovery of gold in
British Columbia, resulted in negotiations for the trans-
fer of the‘ﬁudsén's Lay Company territories to Canada,
and that the first steps toward the completion of the
vtransaction constituted a major blunder of the Ottawa

administration..
(1) Bryce. Op. cit. p.464. L
(2) Dent. The Last Forty Years. Vol.2. p.493.
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CARADA'S MISTAKES IN REGARD TO RED RIVHR.

In an early issue of Riel'a newspaper, The New Nation,

the e&iter auggested many causes for the Metis® aetions
during ‘the preceding months, such as the arrival of Snow's
survey party, the actzvzties of Dennis* surveyors, Canada's
d;sregard of the people ef the settlement during the negot-
iat;ons with the Hudson's Bay Campany, the fact that all
local authoritias at Red River were ;gnered, no allowance
being made by Canada for Repfesentativa Government at Red
River, the attitude of thebéahadian officials iﬁ the diste
rict, and ﬁeﬁéuga11s proclamation af‘ﬁéeember 13%.(1):

In fhé‘minubes.@f the Council of Aasiniboia for its
méeting on’OctoEer 25, 1869;'there is recorded the fact
that Lduis ﬁiél addressed the gathering, and)in‘the course
of a long and somewhat irregular‘diséussiQn)ébjecteﬂﬁthat
‘Canada did net‘éohéult the people of Red River as to any
government coming fram'canada,‘and claimed that the right
of negotiation as to any terms of union with the Dominion
belonged to the inhabitants of the Territory.(2) These
charges of ignoring the people in the territory to be
aﬁnexed'wgre seriéus, and there waS‘ﬂo escépe fer.the

ﬂanédién-éévefﬁment from the ’adversé criticism caused by

(1) New Hation. Jan. 7, 1870.
(2) Oliver. Op. ecit. p.615,
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its negotiations with the Pritish Government and the
Hudson's Bay Company. But the letter of iﬁahructicn
issued to William McDougall when he was appointed
Lieutenant Governor, shewedvclearly that it was not the
intention ofAthe Canadian Government to ignore ali local .
authorities. |

0n your arrival at Fort Garry, you will
place yourself at once in communication with ¥Nr.
MeTavish, the Governor of the Hudson's Fay
Company, and notify him of your appoiniment; you
will, at the same time offer seats in your Council
to Mr.McTavish and to Mr, Black, or other Ghief
Judicial Officer of the Hudson's Bay Company in
the Territory. Should either or both of these
gentlemen decline to accept office, you will
submit, for the consideration of His Excellency,
the names of one or two other officers of the
Company, whom you consider eligible to act as
members of your Council. You will, at the same
time, submii the names of several residents of
character and standing in the Territory, unconnece
ted with the Company, qualified to act as Council-
lors, giving particulars respecting them, and stat-
ing their comparative merits,™(1)

If these instructions are indicative of the attitude of
the Canadian Government, then the“blunder' was that =
copy of same was not sent to theieavernof and Council of
Assiniboia‘fer their information. Had that been dane;
much misunderstanding and, perhaps, perscnai Jealousy
might have been avoided. How the impressién was created
amongst the Metis and other ihhabitants of Red River that

-

(1) Qliverq,Opa eits Pd&?&é



CANADA'S MISTAKES.

the new Governor was bringing all his own officials with
him, will probably remain a mystery. That the impress-
ion was created, is proven by the fact that Colonel Dennis
found it necessary to contradict the statement, 1In a
letter to Governor McTavish, dated November 19, 1869, he
wrote:

”Thia may be contradicted at once. The only

persons mentioned in the Governor's instructe

ions, to whom he is directed to offer seats in

the Council, are residents, and have long been

residents within the Territory....Three gentle-

men only, have come from Canada with the expect-

ation of appointment in or under the Government,

but the Governor's hands are so far untied,

except as above stated, in the matter of the

Council."(1) .

That the Canadian CGovernment showed an extraordin-

ary lack of judgment in sending two survey parties té
Red River without first securing the consent of the
inhaebitants, or assuring them in the possession of their
lands, may be admitted, but & distinction should be
drawn between those acts of the Government and the personal
actions of the surveyors themselves. It would seem to be
rather unreasonable to blame the Cakinet for the private
letters of a sﬁrveyer. Charles Mair, which, when published
in the newspapers of Ontario, caused resentment among

%the poor igndrant half-breeds, whose education

(1) Sessional Papers, 1870. p.55.
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has been purposely and scandalously neglected
by their priests,"(1)

. Some assurance seems %o have béen given to the sette
lers that they éeuld be left in possession of their lands.
The following editorial appesred in the HoreWesper and:c:.
supports this view, | | |

"We have msde it our business to seek an intere
view on the subject with Colonel Dennis, the
Government O0fficer sent forward to take chavge of
the land survey in this Territory. The result of
our talk was most satisfactory. Not only does the
officer named assure us that his instructions arvre
to respect the grants made by the¢ Company but that
his further duty i= to make an accuvate survey of
“those lands as severally vecupied, with the view
of the CGovernment giving to the owners proper deecds
confirming the titles. Whatever system mey be
decided upon as to the township survays, such
gystem will only apply to lands not heretofore
granted or to those unsetiled at the present time,
This course on the part of the Dominion Goevernment
shows &8 determination to respect fully the rights
heretofore acqouired by setilers under the rule of
the Company, and it is 2 guarantee of & spund and
Just policy in the future administration of land-
matters in this ?erritony.“(z) :

Unfartun&tely. the %atis did not trust the NoreWester in its
editorisl comments upon matters of éanadian interest in

Red River and, had they been able to read Hnglish, would

(1) Hew Xation, iar.4, 1869, quotes rair's letters
as copled. B8ee alaa Hargraves. Hed River.
pp. 481 = 457,

{2) RoreWester, Aug.3l, 1869.
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have discounted the article as a piece of propag-
anda,(1) It would seem, however, that the blunders

of sending two survey parties were not so serious and
might have heeﬁ overlooked, had not the individual
members committed the indiscretions and itfagularities
previously mentiaﬁed, and had there not been other
causes for trouble at Red River.

The New Nation was advocating a decided change in
the form of government in the Eertitéry, when it accused
Canada of meking a mistake in not providing for represeni-
ative government. As pointed out above, the system of
gevernment‘in which the citizan has the rigﬁtvte elaét
members to a Iégislativa body, had neve? been known at
Red River, although there may have been some demand for
it prior to 1869.. Rishop Provencher, in his report on
the disturbanaes, remarked: |

 Wrhe general complaint of those men, as far as

I could ascertain, was, that they had not been
consulted on the new political changes about to
take place. They said they tolerated the govern~
ment of the Company from the mere fact of its
existence, and because in reality the charges

were so light that they had no reason to ask for
a change, though for many years they had agitated

I R————

(1) The attitude of the Metis towards the paper is
shown by the fact of its supkession by Riel on
November 5, 1869, and by Judge Prud'homme's

contention of later date, that the attacks on the

Hudson's Bay Compsny by the Nor-Wester were the

beginnings of the trouble at Red River.(Prud’hommé

Op. cit. p.43)
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the question of electing their representatives
in the Council of Assiniboia, and now they were
resolved to take advantage of the recent changes
to realize that desire."(1l)
However, as'thé Canadian Government was: far femaved from
Red River, and had never consulted the inhabitants, it
probably should net be too severely critiéized for not
establishing in the new Province or Térritory a form of
government ﬁhich had been denieé to the people by the
Conmpany. fhé real mistake of the Ottawa administration
wag not its failure tc make provision fdr represenﬁaiive
government, but its careléssneas in not making known to
the prapesed“new'subjeets allvpléns madé-for thé welfare
‘and gaad gavernment of the eoleny. |
The Metis newspaper was on safer graundlwhen it comp-
lained of the attitudes af the officials aent out from
Canada. The Wetis had lost faith in all Canadians, due
to the aetiéns of certain ﬁersoﬁs from the Dominion, even
before the négoii&tions for the surrender éf the Territory
had been stérted.ﬁith the Cémpaﬁy. On two egcésichs members
of the Canadian party had been foraiblyrset free from the
local gael; One of those two prisoners was Dr. John
Schultz, who, from the moment of his arrival in the settle=

ment, had been'the bitter opponent of the Company which

(1) sessional Papers 1870. p.28.
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.represented the existing government. The Doctor was not

a Canadian official, but he had become very prominent in
the affairs 6f the distriect, béing the owner of the White
Store and also of the local newspaper, the ﬂoré%esﬁer;

and his oft-times ille-advised actions certainly prejudiced
the(minds of the older residents against the country which -
they assumed he represented, As he was one of those who
later raised the ery‘sf '‘Rebels' against those‘wha édepted
forecible methods of securing what they wanted and reg&rded
as their rights, the official stary of his delzvery from
prisan is herewith presentea.

‘ “The President next mentioned that his prince
ipal object in assembling the present Council was
to dirent their attention to an oeecurence which
had taken place on Friday last, the 17th instant,
and to requsest their advice as to what measures
it might be best to adopt regarding the same. On
the day mentioned, the Sheriff, in the discharge
- of his duty had precaedad to. the store of Bactor
Schultz for the purpose of levying upon his goods
in execution of a judgment, which had been pron-
ounced against him at the Genersl Quarterly Court
in May last, in an action at the instance of Nr.
F. B, Kew af London actingi.through his agent, Mr.
John Inkster, for this Settlement. _
While preceeding with the levy, the Bheriff
and his Bailiffs were assaulted by the Defendant
and being thus unlawfully disturbed in the per-
formance of his duty, the Sheriff immediately
carried the Defendant before Mr. Goulet a Justice
of the Peace on a charge of assault. Nr. Goulet
- after due investigation committed the Defendant
~ for trial upon the charge of having assaulted the
Sheriff in the discharge of his duty. But the
same night the Defendant was rescued from Prison
by & band of about a dozen men, of whom some
appear to be known., : ‘
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The Defendant was conveyed by them to his own
house and there the President believed he still
remained. The substantial question which the
Prepident wished to submit to the Council was
what they considered best to be done in the
circumstances.,

After full deliberation it was proposed by
lir. EcKay;, seconded by kr. Bannatyne and unanime
ously carried that the judgment of the General
Quarterly Court against Dr. Schultz for the
balance of & note af hand due ta F. B, Xew be
carried ocut.

It was further proposed by ¥r. A. G. Bannatyne,
seconded by Dr. Bird, and unanimously carried :
'*That one hundred men bve immediately sworn in as
gepecial @Gonstables to enforce the carrying out of
the sbove resolution and that they or part of
them be organiged inte a permanent force if con-
sidered necessary!."(1)

If the Dect&r could be regarded as a typieal Canadian,

it is not surprising that the other settlers regarded

all Canadiang with suspicion, that they diétrusted and

disliked the officials from the beginning, and tﬁat they

locked upon the law as something to be disregarded wﬁen

it interfered with one's self~interests. ‘
Vention has already been made of the actions of some

Cenadian officials attached io the survey partges, Moreover

the truth of The New Nation's claim that the attitude of

the officizls sent from Cenada was & cause of the disturb-

ances, cennot be denied. ﬁaﬁy illustrations of the 'Haughty

and supercilious attitude' referred to, might te found in

(1) Oliver. Op. cit. 583. For instances of the
Doctor's outspoken criticism of the H.B.C. see the
editorials in the Nor-Wester for Peb.5, Mar.6,

May 8, July 3, 1869.
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the files of lstters sent back to Canada, notably those
of Charleé Kaif. Bvidence that the early Canadian |
officials were willing to prafit personally at the
expense of the ignofant natives, and that they were $
not too écrupuldus in their methods, is found in the
fact that Mr. 8now, in charge oflthe survey pariy, was
fined £50 for attémpting to purchase a block of land‘
from the Indians at ?oint du Chene, and pay for it in
flour, pork and drink, and that, at a later date,
Colonel Dennis implicated Dr. Schultz as being concere

ned with Snow in this transaction.(l)

The Attitudes and ections of the later Canazdian offic-

ials, such as MeDougall, Dennis, and Smith, will be reveal~
in connection with the events af the Insurrection, bﬁt_
reference must here be wade to one other Canadian NMinister,
who viéited Red River during the autumn of 1869, Joseph
Howe, the stormy leader of the anti-confederation ﬁavemﬁnt
in Nova Scotia, had seen fit to change his attitude, and
had accepted a position as Secretary of State in the Nac-
donald ¥inistry. Through his office at Ottawa passed ali
the communieations concerning the new Territory and the

Pominion. Rumors that all was not well in the Hudson's

(1) Hi1l. History of Wenitobva. p.242,
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Bay Company's district, and that there‘might be some
opposition to its cession to Canada, reached Ottawa
during the summer of 1869, (1) and it was propably with
a desire to investigate personally those reports and
rumors, that Howe visited Red River in October., Intimate
details of that visit are lacking, and those incidents
which have been reported do not furnish a clear picture
of Howe's worde and actions during the short time he was
in the district. It has been said by ane.wha was in
Winnipeg at the time, that

“Honorable Joseph Howe laid the corner-stone
of good=-feeling for Canada in Red River,®

by his refusal to cater to the Canadian party, and be-

ceuse he showed no partislity towards one party or class. (1)
‘A careful search of the files of the KNor-Wester has failed
to reveal any news items concerning the social activities of
tde Honorable Secretary of 3tate for Canada during his

brief sojourn in-the Territory. It is possible thati such

omissions were du® to the fact that the visitor was

(1) Parkin. Op. cit. p.158. It is reported that
Bishop Tache stopped off at Ottawa when on his
way to Rome, and warned Cartier that there might
be trouble at Red River, and was greeted with a
contemptuous laugh.

(2) Beggs. Op. cit. p.32,
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Ypersona non grata' to the owner of the paper, Dr. Schultz,
leading member of the Canada party. The evidence supplied
by & perusal of Howe's letters from Red River, has proven
that he had very little love for the members of the Doct-
ors group, that he avoided their company on all occasions
possible, and was convinced that there would be trouble in
the district before the transfer had been completed. (%)
His sympathies weré to some extent on the side of the -
older residents in their struggle for recognition by the
Canadian Government. On one occasion he felt called upon
to define the méaning of the phrase 'Red River Loyalist!',
and he did so by comparing the 'loyal' people at Red‘Rivgr
to the 'loyal' element in Canada prior te 1857, the loyal

' persons being those who opposed responsible, representative
government.(2)

Another visitor to the Settlement, who was later
imprisoned by the Metis as a‘mémber‘of %he:Schultz party,
has explained the fearless attitude of those who opposed
MeDougall by stating:

®Honorable Joseph Howe, who had preceded M¥eDougall

to Red River, had said at a private dinner-party
given in his honor, that the Government had not

S—————————

(1) Willson. Strathcona. p.173.
(2) New Nation. June 10, 1870.
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given the Honorable Xr. McDougall his Commiss-

~ionbut had promised to send it to him on his
arrival at Fort Garry. With this knowledge
and from such a source, they had no fear of
results detrimental to their cause in refusing
McDougall entrance into the country, knowing
that he had not his Commission and was not
vested with the proper authority to issue a
Royal Proclamation."{l)

Reports and rumors to the effect that he had been
favorable to the imsurgent element during his stay at
Red River, reached Howe's notice on his return to Ottawa,

and he took time and trouble to deny them in a letter to

.. MeDougsll, dated December 11, 1869.

"I think it proper that you should be author-
ized to contradict all such statements, so far as
the inference can be drawn from them, that any-
thing said by me at Winnipeg, or anywhere else,
.gave countenance or sanction to breaches of the
law and order or to resistance to the peaceable
establishment of the authority of the Dominion
in the Territory, under the sanction of Imperial
Legislation, '

During my visit to Red River I never saw Riel,
Bruce, Father Richot, or any persons said to be
the leaders of the insurrectionary movement, but

1 conversed freely with all classes and-.orders

of people, from Governor licTavish downwards, and
to them all held the same language....That the
same constitution as the other Provinces possessed
would mltimately be conferred upon the country;
that in the provisional arrangements to be made,
the feelings and interests of the resident popul=
stion would be considered....that the leading men
enjoying their confidence, would be taken inte

the Government at once, and that young men, with-
out distinction of blood, would be drawn into the

(1) O'Donnell. Op. cit. p.44.
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public service as they were fitted by education
to fill the places of trust and emolument."(1)

All save the last of the 'blunders' named in the New
Nation, have now been exeamined, and it has been shown thsat
some of the mistakes charged by the letis newspaper against
the Canadian Government, cannot be dismissed, but that other
charges against the Government should have been placed
against its representatives after their arrival at Red River,
'Mcﬁougall's Proclamation of December lst belongs to the
second category. The blunder of the Canadian Government
was not the Preclama£ion; it was the appointment of McDoug-
all'te a position in which he could issue such a document.-

There were at least two good reasons why the appoint-
ment of McDougall would not meet with the/approval of the
residents of Red River. 1In the first place,he would be
regarded with suspicion by the French-speaking and Roman
Catholic section, which was cgomposed qf'a ma jority of the
population, because of his associatiohs with George Brown,
and his known opposition to that element in the Canadian
Confederaﬁion. In the second place, he would not be approv-
ed by the officers and servants of the Hudson's Bay Company

in the West, because of his share in the negotiations for

(1) sessional Papers, 1870. p.58. See also p.59
for Major Wallace's report of Howe's activities.
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the transfer of the Territory to the Dominion. It ;a
ineredible that the Canadian Ministry did not knéw'of
the discontent of these people; and thai they should}
have ekpected Governor McTavish to be pleased to‘hand
over hisiauthority to, and to co-operate with, the'mén
whé had done a great injury to the interests'of the Wint&r»
partners, showed & child-like faith in the virtues of
human nature quite unexpected from any group of politic-l
ians.(1) 1If the Canadian Government held the view that
Mr. McDougall's efforhs in securing the Territory were
warthy of tangxble reward surely, in the light of what

was known,‘they eould have found some other position for

(1) McTavish' real view of the situation is well
| stated in a letter to his brather at Kantreal, dated

‘November 4, 1869.

”I will not speak of our dignity, but it is more
than flesh and blood can bear that we, who have
conducted the Government of this country for
years with a view to the welfare and best intere
ests of all classes of the inhabitants, should be
summarily ejected from office, as if we were the
commonest usurping scoundrels., Why should we be
in such indecent haste to cut our own throats 9
What are the Canadians to us thati;we should fall
into their arms the moment they approach us %"

Quoted ‘ine.-
Willson. Strathcona. p.188,
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him, where he wouid not have made such an "“inglorious
fiasco".(1) Had any veal consideration, other than
pelitical expediency, been givén to the matter of the
appointment of a governor for the new Territory, it
.wculd have been evident that the most probable security
" of a peaceful trensfer would be the selection of a man
as Governor, who was familiar with the situation and
approved by the residents. Although Governor NeTavish'
heslth was not goadytha offer to him of the appointment
would have done a gteat deal towards facilitating the
transfer. However, although the advantages of such an
arrangement are very evident, the idéa of making such an
appointment does not appear to have occured to any
official a2t Ottawa. |
‘Sending two surveyperties into a territory not yet
under Canadian control; appainting as’Liéutenantoeovernor,
& man who was nét acceptable to the majoriﬁy of the
ihhabitants,.and then failing to make known to the new
subjects the Governor's instructions; failure to consider
the wishes of the inhabitants of the proposed new Territ-
_ory, 0;fg? the resident officers of the existing govern-

‘ment -- these were some of Canada's mistakes that were

(1) Pope. Memoirs. of Macdenald.“ Vol.2. p.59.
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fundamental causes of the disturbances at Red River. Had
these blunders been avoided there would have been no Red

River Insurrection.
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JMeDOUGALL AND RED RIVER.

v On Beptember 28, 1869, Honorable William McDougall
started from Ottawa on his long trip to Red River Settle-
ment, where he was to assume the duties of Lieutenant
Governor of the North-West Territories on such date as
might be later arranged by the FBritish Governments. .The
reasgon for this early departure to the Territories is
clearly stated in the letter of instructions which he had
received freﬁ the office of the Secretary of State,

"It is desirable that no time should be lost in

making the necessary preliminary arrangements for

the organization of the Government of the Territ-
aries,

With this view I am to instruct you to proceed
with all convenient speed to Fort Garry, in order
that you may effectively superintend the carrying
out of the preliminary arrangements indicated in
the preceding paragraph, and be ready to assume

- the Government of the Territories on their actual

transfer to Canada."(1)

On Qoetober 11, the first open show of resistance to
the Canadian Government took place on the farm of Andre
Nault, when a party of French half-breeds, under the
leadership of Nault's nephew, Louis Riel, stopped Snow's
survey by stepping on the chain. This action, performed
because, as Father Richot stated 'nobody in the country

knew what these surveyors had come for!, seems to have

(1) Oliver. Op. cit. p.878.
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inspired the perpetrators with a sense of their power,
"and to have induced them to take further action towards
preventing Canadian interference with the rights of the
Metis. It was then decided not to allow the entrance
into the Terrviroey of the man whom the Canadian Govern~
ment had sent to be the future Lieutenant Governor.
Accordingly, when McDougall reached Riviere Salle, a few
miles above Fort Garry, he was confronted with a barricade
across his trail, defended by about forty armed men on
horse-back, and was astounded to receive the following
intimationt

"Le Comite National ¥etis de la Riviere Rouge

intime a lonsieur W. McDougall l1l'ordre de ne

pas entrer sur le Territoire du Nord-Ouest

sans une permission speciale de ce Comite.

Par ordre du Predident,
John EBruce.
. Louis Riel, Secretaire. " (1)
As he had neither the desire nor the .force to engage

in érmed conflict, leDougall was compelled to retire to
the American border, where he sought shelter for a time
in & Hudson's bay Company post, but was later forced,
under orders from the Provinciél,aovernment at PFort Garry,
to cross the line to Pembina in the United States. While
waiting at Pembina for the issuance of the Royal Proclam-

ation, which would give him legal authority in the Northe

(1) Ibid. p.8so.
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West Territories, McDougall tried to keep in close touch
with events in the Settlement and received meny reporis
from his agents and other persons there, On October 27,
Colonel Dennis reported to him concerning the attitude
of the Ehglish~speaking residents!

"The general disposition is in favor of receive
ing the incoming Government with respect, but
there is no enthusiasm....They say....we consid=
er it a most outrageous proceeding on their (the
French) part, and one that we would be glad to
see, if possible, put a stop to. At the same
time, should an appeal to arms be necessary, we
could hardly justify ourselves in engeging in a
confliet, which would be, in our opinion, certain
to resolve itself into one of nationalities and
religions, and ef which we cbuld hardly, at
present, see the termination.
We feel this way: We feel confidence in the
future administration of the Government of this
| country under Canadian rule; at the same time we
have not been consulted in any way as a people,
in entering into the Dominion."(l)

Three days later Governor lcTavish wrote to MeDougall
‘advising him to remain at Pembina until he should learn
of a peaceable dispersion of the malcontents. (2) In reply,
MeDougall put the onus of keeping law andﬂarder in the
Settlement upon the shoulders of the Hudson's Eay Company

Governor until the Royal Proclamation should be issuéd,

(1) Ivid. p.881.
(2) 1vid. p.886.
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lMecDougall contended that the sending out of a proclamation
by McTavish,

"explaining the proyisions of the late Imperial
Act respecting the Territories, and the author-
ity under which the new Government will exercise
its powers, at the same time warning the mal-
contents of the serious nature of the crime they
meditated, and the grave consequence to all con-
cerned, that must result from its commission,
would have been well-timed, and perhaps suffice
ient to prevent the designing men at the head
of this movement from accomplishing their purp-
oses, " (1)

On November 2, the day on which the above letter was
written, Riel and his follewers‘entered, and took quiét
 pessession of Fort Garry, without any show of opposition
on the part of the Hudson's Bay Company.(2) Governor
HeTavish was i1l in bed, and when Doctor Cowan, the secohd_
in'commagd, asked £he reason for the ocecupation, he was
told that the letis had come to save the Fort, but'receivéd
only vague answers when he asked them the name of the party L
Or'parties who might attack it. In a letter t@'mcncugéll

(1) Ivid. p.sss. |

(2) Morice. History of the Catholic Church. (Vel.2,

- pp. 26«26 )} offers an explanation to the effect
that Mt was declared by a spy of Schultz that
many of the Hasterners in Assiniboia were sold-

- iers in disguise, who had secreted their uniforms
in their homes. Then to prevent the forces which
were known to be recruited by the Canadian party

from availing themselves of the strong walls and
cannon of Fort Garry, Riel occupied it."
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dated November 9, McTavish referred to thé event as
follows:

"On the afternocon of Tuesday, 2nd., a

number of these daring people, suddenly, and
without the least intimation of their intents
ion to make such a move, took possession of
the gates of the Fort.,,.It is needless to
ask why their presence was submitted to,.,,
it was only borne as being apparently, with
respect to immediate results, the legss form-
idable of tho very serious evils,"(1)

That MeDougall did not aceept this statement at its face
value is proved by the following excerpt from a letter
written to the Secretary of State on November 20th,

- "I have the positive assurance of Najor Wallace,
whe has just returned from Fort Garry, as well
as the statements of the 'Friends of Canada',
that the Company's officers in charge of Fort
Garry were told of the intention of the Rebels
to take the Fort, the day before it occufed,
and that the Chief Constable, ¥ulligan, who is
an old soldier, offered to raise a force, partly
composed of pensioners, with which he declared
he could hold the Fort against all Rebels
who would be likely to attack it; but was told
by Dr. Cowan, the officer in charge, that his

services were not wanted."(2)

it might be well at this juncture to explain that

trm————

(i)‘Sessional Papers, 1870. p.53.

(2) Ivid. p.5l. Purther support for ¥eDougall's view

' of the acquiescence of the Company in the possess-
ion of Fort Garry by the Rebels, was found .in a
letter from a young Bnglish traveller who was
present at the time. 'The French are making the
H.B.C, find them without pay, which serves them
right, as when they had cash they did not mind
letting them into the Fort, which, with the help
of the loyal, they might easily have held; bLut it
is evident that vetween you and me they at first
were well pleased at the way things were going."



40.

MeDOUGALL AND RED RIVER.

MeDougall st an esrly stage in the proceedings, became
convinced of the complicity of some of the members of the
Council of Assinibois with the insurrection.

"1 cannot account for this extraordinary retic-
ence and hasty surrender of authority by the

legal rulers of the country upon any theory but that
of the weakness and imbecility of the Governor, and
the complicity of some of the members. of the Coun-
¢il with the insurrection, I have evidence that
one of his councillors, at whome. home some of the
first meetings of the malcontents were held, is in
correspondence with the American plotters at Pembe
ina....This treason within the Council will also
account for the stopping of supplies which were
ordered by the H,B.C. agent here for our use as
well as his own, and which the Rebels could have
known noething about unless some of the H.E.C.
employees had disclosed their destination."(1)

In another letter on November 20, he wrote;
"The confirmed belief of every person I have seen,
or whose testimony has reached me (whether in the
confidence of the Rebels, or friendly to Canada),
is, that the H.B.C. employees, with scarcely an
exception, are either actively or tacitly encourag-
ing the insurrection.”(2)

MeDougall went on to explain that he had had to pay exorbit-

ant prices to the Hudson's Bay Company for his supplies,

that he had not received any assistance, suggestion, or

commﬁnicatian (except two letters from Governor ﬁcTavish)

from any of the Company's agents, and that the Company's

(1) Ivid. p.38.
(2) Ivid: p.51.
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officers knew of the Rebel intentions to take the Fort
twelve hours previcus to the act. He believed that
Sheryiff McKenny was advising, aiding and abetting the
Rebels.(l) He had been told that the Hudson's FBay
Company were supporting the ﬂebels.tﬁhat their present
role was to prevent him having any official intercourée
with them and that the Rebels would support the govern-
ment of the Company as it then existed.(2) On November 8
. Charles Nair wrote from Winnipeg:
%The Company, beyond all question, are deeply
¢oncerned in the matter. Half-breeds themselves
declare that they received assistance, Insurgents
in quasi possession of Fort Garry received their
supplies there....If the Company shut down upon
the insurgents, which they can do at any moment,
they cannot subsist for any length of time upon
their own means."(3)
Major Wallace, who was in Fort Garry from November 4 taizz.
wrote:
*I further think, on conversing with the friends
and foes of the Hudson's Bay Company, that they
could, in the most easy manner, have stopped the

whole affair by issuing their proeclamation....On
this Company's head lies a full measure of blame."(4)

(1) Ibid. p.65.

(2) Ibid. p.31. (An unsigned letter, probably written
by Dr. Schultz)

(3) 1vid. p.39,

(4) Ivid, p.63
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On Hovember 6, Riel and his followers in Fort Garvy
- selzed the effices of the Nor-Wester, in & menner describe
ed by the editor as follows:
“I-wasibusy at the case anevdéy in the Hor-Wester
.0ffice, when six or eight armed Yetis dropped in
and said they would run the paper for a while.
They 'pied’ the type and wrecked the office but
permitted me to go on sleeping in my room. Howe
every...1 sought other quarters, and the Nor-
Wester office was used as & guard room by the
Riel forces. I was allowed to come and go free-
1y, and menaged to secure type for the proclame
ation issued by Colenel 5,J,Dennis of the
appointment of & Lieutenant Governor and of his,
Colonel Dennig!, intention to act rigorously as
conservator of the peace,"(1)
On the same day as the event described above, Riel
sent out a» public notice to the inhabitants of Rupert's
_ $ahd on behalf of the President and Representativés of the
Frenche-speaking population, inviting the English residents
to send twelve representatives to a meeting with twelve
French members to consider the political state of the
country and to adopit sugh measures as might be thought best
for its future welfare. (2)
One week later Governor MeTavish feceived a document
signéd by some residents of the Town of Winnipeg, in which
it was demanded that he proclaim & full and coerrect exposit-

ion@f the nature of the transfer of the Territory to the

(1) Winship. Free Press Evening Bullétin. Feb.28,1928.
(Mr. Winship worked on the Nor-Wester for Dr.
' Schultz and also on The New Nation for Riel.)

(2) Oliver. Op. cit. p.889.
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Dominion of Canada; and it was requested that he explain
the policy likeiy to be adopted by the Canadian author-
ities relative ta’the governing of ﬁhe Territory, that he
démy the numérous libellous slanders which were in circul-
ation regarding the purposes for which the ?erritorvaas
acquired, and that he warn the ﬁetia‘ef the danger and
entréat theﬁ te lay down their arms.and return peaceably
to their homes,(l): From a man who was as sick as McTavish,
the resulting Proclamation, issued belatedly on vaeﬁber
16th, (2) was a masterpieee of evasion and non-compliance
with the demahds and requests.  Afte£ ﬁetailing five |
'unlawful acts' committed by large bedies of armed men
(and it was noticeable that the acts which received the
most lengéhy comments were those which concerned the prop-
erty of the Hudson'sABay Camgany), ﬁe eharged the persons
engaged in those deeds to return to their homeg,énd to
adopt only such means as would be lawful and Qanstitq@ian&l,
rational énd safe.(3) Such a praclamatién at that time
could servé no immedia}ely ﬁseful purpose, but it might be
used as an alibi later, by the Governor and Council, if the

‘(1) Ibid; p.890.

1(2) For reasons why the proclamation was not issued
earlier, see licTavish' letter to lcDougall.
Sessional papers, 1870. p.52.

(5).01iver.:‘0p. cit. p.89z.
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armed bodies were not successful in their endeavours to
pievent Canadian control of Red River Settlement; and it
might also save the Hudson's Bay Company preperty from
destruction, by placing the Company on the winning side
in the struggle.

Thekfirst meeting of the convenﬁian of twelve‘English
and twelve Fréﬁeh representatives was held in the Céurt
House in Fort Garry on the afternocon of November 16, when
the first item of business appeafs.to heve been the read-
ing from a copy of the Nor-Wester of the Governor's Proc-
lamation. It is reported that the inglish thought the
Proclamation was a farce, and the French regarded’it as a
weak show of authority, The second meeting of the Gonﬁent-
ion broke up when Biel vehemently opposed the request of
the #nglish representatives, thaet the French lay down their
arms and allow lr. Mcbougall to enter the Territary. At
the third meeting, on the 23rd, the French declared their
intention'of forming a yrevisional government, and the
meeting adjourned to December 1, in order that the fEnglish

members mightlcansult,their constituents.

In the interim of the adjournment there were no events _

of outstanding importance at Red River. On the 18%th, in the

Court at Winnipeg a man named Thomas Scott was fined, on a

charge of assault, laid against him by his employer on the -
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survey party, John Snow. On the 23rd and 24th, Riel took
possession of all the land-titles papers, and of the office
of Roger Goulet, Collector of Customs.

Outside the Territory, however, two events occurred
during thatvpe:icd which had a very direct bearing upon
the course of Canadian IHistory. On Kovember 19, the.
Hudson's EBay Company officials in Londen signed the Eeéd
of Surrender of Rupert's Land to the Rritish Crown, and
on the 27th, the Canadian Government sent the following
message to the British authorities:

"Canada cannot accept transfer unless quiet
possession can be given,...¥y (Governor Gen-
eral, Lord Lisgar) advisers think Proclamat-
ion should be postponed.”(1)

The reasons for this last-mentioned act were very
clearly set forth in 2 letter from the Secretary of state,
Howe, te,McDougali, » & letter which, unfortun@tely,
reached its destination too late to prevent diséster.
Afﬁer referring to the facts mentioned in McDougall's
despatches of Oetaberval, November 5 and 17, Howe wrotej

"1f, with facts before them, the Canadian Govern-
ment accepted the responsibility of governing, or
rather, assuming the government of a country that
could only be recovered by conquest, at a vast

distance from the base of operations, and which,
for many months could only be approached through

———T———

- ..{1).Sesmsional Papers, 1870. p.139,
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the United 8tates, they could hardly Jjustify

an act of such precipitancy to Parliament and

the country; while it is equally eclear that if
you were invested with the legal title to govern
without being able to get into Rupert's Land, or
exercise any suthority, the revolutionery govern-
ment would be strengthened by your weakness, and
would in fact, (the Proclamstion having superceded
Governor MeTavish) be the only government in the
Territory until put down by force of arms."(l)

On the first day of December the Convention reassemb-

led, but the English representatives withdrew when they

learned that no attempt had been made to get in touch with

Mr. McDougall. The remaining delegates drew up a Bill of

Rights

containing fifteen clauses, which need not be exam-

- ined here as nothing further came of it. Fut the first

~day of

Decenber, 1869, was a memorable day for the resid-

ents of Red River for another reason. On that day McDougall,

in the

name of the Queen, issued a Proclamation, naming

himself as Lieutenant Governor of the North-West Territore

ies.(2) At the same time he gave Colonel Dennis a commission

as Conservator of the Peace, with authority

TN

“"to raise, organize, arm, equip and provision,
a sufficient force within the said Territories,

‘and with the said force, to attack, arrest, dis-

arm, or dispurse the:said armed men so unlawfully
assembled and disturbing the public peace; and
for that purpose, and with the force aforesaid,
to assault, fire upon, pull down, or break into

(1) Oliver. ®p. cit. p.9%10.

(2) Ibid. p.893.
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any fort, house, strénghold, or other place in
which the said armed men may be found."(1)

This action by licDougall is exceedingly hard to under-
stand, as he himself knew what chances he was taking in
‘assuming that the prop@séd Proclemation, for which he had
been waiting, had been issued. On various occasions in
his reports to the Secretary of State he had made reference
te the Queesn's Proclamatian)and to the fact that he would
not have any authority until it had been issued,

"They understand perfectly that i have no legal
authority to act, or to command obedience till
the Queen's Proclamation is issued."(2)

"] shall remsin here (Pembina) until I hear

officially of the transfer of authority, and
shall then be guided by circumstances as to what

I shall say and do."(3)

"The recommendation that I should issue a Proc-
lamation, is not made for the first time, but I
have uniformly replied that until the Transfer
of the Territory has taken place, and I am not-
ified of the fact, I shall not assume any of the
responsibilities of Government."(4)

But as time passed and the date on which, éa he believed{
the transfer was to take place, appreached, without any
wérd from Ottawa, he began to complain and to reconsidér
. _ | A
(1) Ibid. p.896. °
(2) Sessionzl Papers, 1870. p.39.
(3) 1vid. p.32.
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his former decision not to act without official notice.

Thus, on November 25t%#, he wrote:?

"] am still without my official notice of the

. Imperial Qrder in Council, and must act, if at

all, upon the informastion contained in the
private letters from Sir Curtis Lampson, which
announced the date of transfer agreed to by the
Imperial Gavernment to be December lst, next."(l)

In another letter four days later he stated the reasons for

the urgency in issuing the Proclamation,

He was
wrote,

64k

*In the present state of affairs in the settlement
it is of the utmost importance to announce the
transfer of authority in the most authentic and
solemn manner possible, in order to give confid-
ence and the protection of legality to the acte of
the loyal and well-disposed, and to put the malcon-
tents and their American advisers and sympathizers
publicly and technically in the wrong."(2

well satisfied with the results of his action and

as follows, to the Secretary of state, on December

"Riel said, 'This puts a different face on the

-matter', and as my informant says 'expressed much

1aya1ty'. He appealed to the English delegates....

to help them peaceably to get their rights....Riel's
guards were withdrawn from the town after the post-
ing of the Proclamstion, and also from the store-
house containing the Government provisions....l not=-
ice the remark in your despatch %3) that I cean claim
or agssert no authority in the Hudson's Fay Territory,
until the Queen's Proclamation reaches me through
your office. If I had so read my Gommission and the

(1) Ibid. p.59.
(2) Ibid. p.64,
(3) Ibid. p.p.14-15,
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acts of Parliament, the Rebel Government would
have been formally inaugurated during the
‘interregnum which must have occurred between

the first of Decembey {which the Rebels as well
as the Hudson's Bay Company's agents knew and
believed to be the date of the transfer) and the
time when your messenger would have met me at

St. Cloud or 8t. Paul, if 1 had lived to get so
far, with no disposition or power to return with-
out en army at my back....My conviction is that
we would have had to fight at a much later date,
and at a great disadvantage, a very different
enemy from that which now melts away before a
Proclametion and a 'Conservator of the Peace.'"(1)

Although McDougall's action in issuing the Proclamet-

ion and appointing Colonel Dennis Conservator of the Peace,

may have been instigated by very good intentions, the
results were not such as he had expected. For a day er two,
until Riel and his party learned that the actions of the
'@euld be' Lieutenant Governcr were illegal and without
authority, affairs were quite quiet in thé Setthement,
disturbed only: by the war-like aetisnsvaf the Cbﬁs?rvatar

of the Peace. FPerhaps the activities of that gentleman

Amay'bé“best‘suMmarized by quoting from a letter written by
! 3

the Secretary of State, sfter he had received MecDougallts

communication of December 6th:

"But Colonel Dennis, with no legsl authority,
proceeds to seize the Fort,(2) then in possession

(1) 1vid. p.76,

(2) The Fort referred to in the above letter was the
' Lower Fort, about twenty miles down the Red River
- from the Port which Riel and his men occupied.
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not of the insurgente, but of the Hudson's

Bay Company, and to garrison it with a mixed
force of Whitesand Indians, and proposes {o
give battle to the insurgents, should a junct-
ion ve formed with some forces which he has
ordered to be drilled on the Assinibeine, He
appears never to have thought that the moment
war commenced, all the white inhabitants would
be at the mercy of the Indians, by whom they
are largely outnumbered, and, divided as they
would be, might be easily overpowered."(1)

In connection with Colonel Dennis' preparations for
war, an episode, which has been called “the Schultz blunder!
occurred. In the town of Winnipeg a party of about fifty
Canadian men and women had taken refuge and barricaded |
themselves in the home of Dr. Schultz. A member of that
party later expressed the opinion that ﬁhe action was a
great mistake.

"Schultz and Snow called the Canadians together
for the purpose of protecting some Government
storeda. It was a great mistake. The value of

the provisions therein stored was inconsiderable
and their destruction or removal by the Metis
was of small moment....If the Canadians had
remained in their individual lodgingeplaces or
homes, and aitended as usual to their daily duties
as they had been doing, the cause for an attack
upon them would have been removed."(2)

The immediate'results of this 3egregatian of the

Canadians by Schultz were that they were forced to surrend-

(1) Oliver. Op. cit. p.912,
(2) OfDonnell. Op. cit. p.32.
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er, and became prisoners of the Metis at Fort Garry;(1)
and the antagonism between the French and Canadians at
Red River became more open and more bitter. It is
evident that the Schultz party could not have hoped to

. hold out for any length of time against the forces arre
ayed on thelother side. That they were compelled to
‘s@rrenﬁer without any acts of violence or bloodshed, is
not only a remarkable fact, but is also a striking comme
ent upon the discipline and control exercised over the
'Rebel' forces.

Oh December 8, a Declaration of the People 6f
Rupert's Land and the HortheWest was issued ﬁnder the
‘signatures of John Bruce, President, and Louis Riel,
gecretary, in which it was declared that & Provisional
Government had been established,

"to be the only and lawful suthority now in
existence igﬁﬁupert's Land and the North West
which ¢laimsS.obedience and vespect of the
people; that, meanwhile, we hold ourselves in
readiness to enter in such negotiations with
the Canadian Government as may be favorable
for the good government and prosperity of
this people."(2)

~ The legal position of this Government has been quest-

ioned by some writers, but it would seem that the Prime

SOOI I

(1) For an account of: the living conditions in the
gaol, see Hill's History of Manitoba. p.262.

(2) Oliver. Op. cit. p.906.
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Ninister of Canada at that time entertained no doubts
on the metter. On November 27, Sir John A. ¥ecdonald
wrote to his representative waiting to gain.admittance
to the Territery. as follows:

PAn assumption of the Government by you, of
course, puts an end to that of the Hudson's -
Bay Company's authorities, and Governor XcTavish
and his Council would bé deprived of even the
eemblance of legal right to interfere. There.
would then be, if you were not admitted into

the country, no legal government existing, and
anarchy must follow. In such a case, no matter
how the anarchy is produced, it is quite open
by the law of nations for the inhabitants to
form a government ex necessitate for the pro-
tection of life and property, and such a gov-

ernment has certain sovereign rights by the
tjus gentium'."(1)

It should be remembered that the Prime Minister whose
statement is quoted abéve; was a lawyer of fair renown,

and althaugh gsome ether‘le&rnéd men of his prafeasion‘have>
not agreed with this imierpretation of the law, his opine
ion on legal and constitutional m&t@ens is worthy of |

- serious cansideration.lehe lggality of the Provisiénél
Government is intimately conneeﬁéd with the question as
toiwhether or not the disturbances at Red River in 1869
'were a rebeliian, and & discussion of this gquestion may

be found in subsequent pages (2) of this presentation,

(1) Pope. lNemoirs of Macdonald. Vol.2. p.54.

(2) See pages 101 ff.
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On December 10, the Provisional Government raised
aloft its own flag at Fort Garry, the design being a
combination of the fleur-de-lis and shamrock.. Many
persons have regarded this sction by Riel and his adve
iséra ag one of disloyalty to the Eritish Government,
and the incident has Been used as an argument advanced
in support of the view that the troubles at Red River
constituted a rebellioﬂ, In considering this topic, it
should be borne in mind that the Hudson's Fay Company
always flew over their posts their own ensign, consisting
of a red ground bearing the Union Jack in one corner and
the letters H.B.C. dn the field. As there was only eﬁe
flag pole in Fort Garry, it seems probable that the flag
of the Provisional Government replaced, not the Union
Jack, but the H.B.C. ensign. If this were so, there would
not seem to be any great disloyalty in substituﬁing the
| flag of the existing government for that of the defunct
regime.

A writer who has made an intensive study of the Vetis
movement,and has questioned many of the participants, has
made the following statement concerning the flying.of the
flag of the Provisional Government:

"After the Provisional Government began to work
gmoothly, and all difficulties in the way of

union with Canade seemed to have been removed,
Riel had the Union Jack hoisted at Fort Garry
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in place of the emblem of the Provisional
Government. This, however, did not meet with
O'Donoghue's approval and he had the Union Jack
hauled down, and the Fleur-de-Lis and Shamrock
run up again. Seeing this, Riel, after replac-
ing the new flag by the British emblem once
more, placed Andre Nault, to this day a respecte
ed citizen of St. Vital at the foot of the mast
with orders to shoothanyone who should try to
pull the flag down. According to ¥r., Nault, the
report of Begg and some authors after him that
O'Donoghue was permitted to erect another flag
pole in the Fort from which the flag of the
Provisional Government was allowed to wave is
incorrect. He stated to us under oath that
there never was but one flag pole in the fort,
and oithér old timers of the Metis Group are
Just as positive. The flag incident caused a
violent row between Riel and 0'Donoghue, the
latter being more and more in favor of indep=-
endence or annexation to the United States,
while the former remasined faithful to the Brit-
ish Crown with the ultimate thought of joining
Canada, &s conferences between Ottawa and Fort
Garry now made possible in the near future....
Those who are ineclined to accuse Riel of
disloyalty might remember that it was he, in
fact, who was the first man to raise the purely
Union Jack over Fort Garry and the Forth West
Territories of those days., Fefore his time
the Hudson's Bay Company had a sort of emblem
with the Union Jack in one corner and the letters
H.B.C. on the field (and still has it to this
_ day), while in the emblem used by Dr. Schultz
those letters were replaced by the word 'Canada'." (1)

If the statements made in the preceding paragraph are
éorrect. then some explanation is necessary to account for
the fact that the Union Jack was not flying at Fort Garry

when the Wolseley BExpedition arrived in August, 1870. All

(1) de Tremaudan. (ed) Louis Riel's Account of the
Capture of Fort Garry. C.,H.R. June, 1924.
pp. 149 - 152,
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witneséea agree on the fact that there had heen an all
night rain on August 23-24. Bishop'Tache in his evide
ence taken by a 8Bpeciasl Committee of 1874,-stéted:

#An sbundant rain fell during the night and
the British Flag was hauled down for that
reason. I had seen it myself floating the
preceding night."(1) _

In his own account of the capture of Fort Garry, Riel
stated his plans to receive Colonel Wolseley and the
Expedition,.

"1 hed another thought; that of gathering
into TFort Garry all the Metis who had approve
ed of the Provisional Government; placing them
on the south shore of the Assiniboine and the
west shore of the Red River, ready to salute
the troops with a bon-fire, while I, with
eighty or one hundred men of the guard, would
be standing at the south gate of Fort Garry.
Having sent men of mark in the country to meet
the commandant and tell him that the Fort was
unguarded and unoccupied so as to receive the
Queen's representative, I would have waited,
before withdrawing with the ¥etis, until the
troops had taken possession of the Fort: a
small minority hesitated whether it should ad-
opt the plan but others did not want it.

The result of the discussion of these diff-
erent ideas was that, for lack of harmony,
nothing was done."(2)

It would seem a logical conclusion that, having thought

of such preparations for the reception of the Queen's

(1) sessional Papers, 1874. p.45.

(2) de Tremaudan. ILouis Riel's Account of the
Capture of Fort Garry. C.H.R. June 1924. p.l56.
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representative, Riel would hardly have overlooked the
significant detail of flying the Queen's flag, and was
only hindered and prevented by some untqward circumst-
ance, such.as the storm. It would appear,therefore,
that the sole evidence of the 'flag incident' would not
Justify the condemnation of Riel as a Rebel, nor the
description of the Red River disturbances as a rebeliion._
In the days following the hoisting of the flag no
events of importance took place Wiihin the walls of the
Fort, but outside the walls, Colonel Dennis continued his
efforts to arouse the settlers to aid ¥eDougall, snd on
.December 16, commissioned an Indian, Yonkman, to arouse
the Indiahs against the Metis. This marked the second
great error made by the Colonel in his role as military
expert, his>first.mistake having been the advice to the
Schultz group to barricade themselves against the Netis.
*The pdor Indian, with his untutored mind” showed better
Judgment than this civilized Conservator of the Peace,
and no uprising occurred. The following excerpt from a
manuscript written by the late Mr. J.H.Ashdown (1) would

T ————

(1) Mr. Ashdown, who was later a prominent hardware
merchant in Western Canada, was just beginning
business in Winnipeg in 1869, and was a member
of the Schultz party. He was imprisoned by Riel,
and, some writers assert, narrowly escaped the
fate of Thomas Scott. : :
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show that not all the residents of the settlement approv-

e¢d the Colonel's actions,

"S0 far as I had to do with Colonel Dennis, and
I had con81derable, he was & gentleman and
thoroughly up in his oec¢cupation as a surveyor,
He did not prove subsequently to be a good
military man, and in some respects he certainly
did not show good judgment, as for instance,
when he sent for the Canadians to go down to the
Lower Fort and enroll and then sent them back
with the instructions that if they saw fit, they
could gather in BSchultz! buildings, he made a
very great blunder, because, situated in those
buildings, they were absolutely at the mercy of
the Rebels. It was mad folly their gathering
there, and I expreseed myself strongly at the
time in that respect, but did not see my way
clear to stand aside while the rest of the

Canadians had gotten into a trap.”(1)

When the repart of the Colonel's activities reached
Qttawa, through McDougall, it called forth the letter
previously quoted (page 46) and also the following remarks
from the Secretary of State:

*The proceedings of Colonel Dennis , as reported,
by himself, are so wreckless and extraordinary,
that there can be no relief from solicitude here
while an officer so imprudent is acting under
your authority....It is impossible to read the
Colonel's account of his attempt to persuade
Judge Plack to aidc him in proclaiming martial
law, without strong feelings of regret, that you
should have been repregented in the settilements,
by & person with so little discretion."(2)

AT,

(1) Wihship. Article in Winnipeg Free Press. Feb.18,
1928,

(2) sessional Papers, 1870. p.85.
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By the end of December, MeDougall had given_up 211
hope of making a peaceable entry into the Territory, and
was making preparations tq return to Ottawa. His plans
had completely miscarried, ending ina "most inglorious
fiasco".‘ He had not only failed to gain admittance to
his "promised land", but by his actions, and those of
his advisers and répresentativea, he had caused loss of
sympathy for Canada among all ihe inhabitants of Red
River, save among those in the pérty under the influence

of Dr. Schultz. He had, thereby, strengthened Riel's

position, and made "peaeéable possessienﬁ more difficult.
. In placing the blame for his failure, however, it should
be remembered that he had not received any helpful advice

from Howe, who might have aided him; that he had been

badly advised by his agents and frdiends in the Settlement;

and that he had been tremendously~handieapped by lack of
any adequate means of comwunication between Pembina snd

Ottawa.
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On December 6, the Dominion Government, aroused by
the receipt of MeDougall's reports concerning the
unsettled state of gffairs<in Red River, issued 2 Proc-
lamation, setting f;rth its good intentions towards the

settlers, and promising that |

“no legal proceedings'would be taken against
any parties implicated in these unfortunate
breaches of the law,® (1) .

in case of 1mmediate and péaceable obedience and disper-
sion. In the letter which aocompanied'ﬁha Proclamation,
 the Secretary of State pointed out that the Canadian
Government had decided to publish the Letter of Instructe
ions given to Mr. McDougall, and to send assistance to
that distressed individual;

"1 have the honor to inform you that the Very -
Reverend Mr. Thibauld, accompanied by Charles
de Salaberry, HEsq., proceeds tomorraw, via St.
Paul and Pembina to Fort Garry, for the purpose .
ofuassisting in putting down the unlawful assem-
blage of people on the Red River, and obteining
access for the Canadian Authorities into,North-
West.,..They will be followed by Donald A.8mith,
Esq.ss.to act as a Commissioner holding confide
ential relations with the Canadian Government, v
In that capacity, having once reached Fort Garry,
he will be able to speak authoritively as to the
- beneficent intentions of the Government....You
will now be in a position, in your communication
with the residents of the North-West, to assure
them: . , .

SR ———

(1) oliver. Op. eit. p.901.
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That 21l their civil and religious libert-
ies and privileges will be sacredly respec-
ted,

That all their properties, rights and

equities of every kind, as enjoyed under the
Government of the Hudsan's Bay Company, will
be continued to them.

That, in granting titles to land now occupiéd
by the settlers, the most liberal poliey will
be pursued.

That the present tavriff of Customs duties will
be continued for two years, from the lst Jan-
uary next, except in the case of spirituaus
liquors.

That in forming your Council, the Governor-

6.

7.

8.

Mr. Thibauld arrived at Fort Garry on December 26; Nr.

@eneral will see that not only the Hudson's
Bay Company, but the other classes of the
residents, are fully and fairly represented.

That your Council will have the power of est-
abilishing manicipal self-government at once
and in such a manner as they think most bene-
ficial to the Country.

That the Country will be governed, as in the
past, by British law, and according to the
splrit of British justice.

That the present Government is to be conside
ered as merely provisional and temporary,
and that the Government of Canada will be
prepared to submit a measure to Parliament,

- granting a liberal constitution as soon as

you, as Governor, and your Council have had
an opportunity of reporting fully on the
wants and requirements of the Territory."(l)

D. A, Smith followed him on the 27th, having taken the.

(1) Ibid. p.p. 902-904.
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brecaution to leave all copies of his papers and crede
entials in charge of Nr. Provencher, at Pembina; Cole
onel de Saleberry did not reach his destination at Red
River before January 5, 1870. Iﬁ the meantime, the
Honorable William MecDougall and his party had set out
on the réturn trip to Canada, leaving the Provisional _
Government in eampleﬁe cgntrallin the Settlement, though
not withdut some opposition.

On Decembervzz,'ﬂiel had purchased the newspaper,

Red River Pioneer, and it Lecame the recognized organ of

the CGovernment, assﬁming the title of the New Nation,
At a meeting of the representatives of the people, hel&
at Port Gérry a few days later, he had been elected Pres-
ident eof the Provisional Government, with the fellowing
men as members of his Executlve; Vice-President, ¥Francois
Xavier ﬁauph;naia, ‘Becretary of the Council, Lauis Schmidt;
| Secretary~Treasurer, W.BE.O!Donohue; Adjutantweenera;,
Ambroise Lepine; Postmaster, A.G.B.Bannatyne.(l) fThe fi}st
edition of the New Nation appearad on January 7, and con-
tained & striking editorial entitled 'Qur Policy'.

" In common with the majority of this Settle-~

ment we regard the H.B,(C's government as
obsolete, and never to be resuscitated. The

R

(1) Ibid. p.913.
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Dbominion Government, by its criminal blunders
and gross injustice to this people, has for-
ever alienated them; and by their forfeiture

of all right to our respect, will prevent us

in future from either seeking or permitiing

its protection. The Imperial Government we
‘consider to be too far distant to intelligently
administer our affairs, The question arises
then, what form of government is best adapted
for the development of this country ? And we
reply, unhesitatingly, that the United States
Republic offers us todsy that system of govern-
ment which would best promote order and progress
in our midst, and then open up rapidly a country
of magnificent resources, But in our present
dependent position we cannot obtain what we need
in that direction, and hence, we will hold it
our duty to advocate independence for the people
of Red River as-a present cure for public ills.

Cur annexation to the States will follow in :
time, and bring with it the advantages this land
80 much requires."(1)

In the Orders of the Provisional Government of Rupert's
Iand, issued on January 8th, in which the election of Louis
Riel as President was announced, it was proclaimed that

"the President and Repreaentatives of the peep1e 
«+sshave pardoned twelve political prisoners, show-

A

(1) New nation. Jan. 7, 1870. EBfforts to ascertain
who wrote the editorial have not met with any
success. From what has been learned of Riel, at
that time he wes not a supporter of annexation %o
the United States, but made many assertions, pub-
liely and privately, of loyalty to the British
Queen. On the other hand, 0O'Donohue was an ardent.
advocate of union with the Republie, and was a
rabid Fenian, & prime mover in the so-called Fenian
raid on Manitoba in 1871. His actions in 1869+70
are rather obscure, but he was probably the man
behind the scenes in meny antisBritish moves. As
he had received a fair education, it is quite .
‘pProbable that the above editorial came from his
pen.
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ing thereby that clemency and forgiveness are
‘ . as familiar to them as severity." %4)
The following day Thomas Scott, Charles wair, and some
other prisocners escaped from the gaol iﬁ Fort Garry and
made their way to the settlements at Portage la Prairie.
Unfortunately fop/the peace of'the whole Dominion, they
- were not content to stay there, but returned to the Fort
at 2 later and most inopportune time, under érms.
Political conditions within the Settlement at the

beginning of the new year were described by the Gommiss-

ioner for Canada, D. A, Smith, as

"most unsatisfactory and tfuly humiliating.
Upwards of sixty British subjects were held in
close confinement as ‘'political prisoners?,
security for persons or property, there was none;
the Fort, with its large supplies of ammunition,
provisions, and stores of all kinds, was in the
possession of a few hundred half«breeds; whose
leaders had declared their determination to use
every effort for the purpose of annexing the
Territory to the United States; and the Governor
and Council of Assiniboia were powerless to
enforce the law."(2)

On January 14, Riel'went to see the Commissioner because
he was not satisfied with what he had learned from the
other delggates sent out by the Canadian Government, whose
errand had been merely to 'calm the French Half{breéda*.
(1) Oliver. Op. cit. p.913.
(2) Ibid. p.921,
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As a result of this visit Riel agreed to have Smith's
papers.delivered into his (Smith's) hands. There was
some difficulty connected with‘thisvtransaction,_in‘
explanation of which Smith later placed emphasis on tﬁe
parts taken on the side of Riel by Father Richot and
Father lLestanc, members of the clergy who consistently
used their influence to maintain Riel's position., -The
party which was bringing in the papers,

"was accosted by Rial and some of his party,

and by the Reverend Mr. Richot..«..It may be
well to note that all those who iteok part in

this affair were Catholics, and, with one or
two exceptions, French Half-breeds....Pere
Lestanc joined them....spoke warmly in faveor
of the!President!, who, he said, had acted

s0 as to merit the gratitude of his country-
men, and begged them still to plaee confide-
ence in them....Riel's men were now falling ,
away from him, while the loyal party expressed
their determination no longer to be guided in
the matter either by him or by Pere Lestanc
and his associates....late that night, Pere
Lestanc paid them another visit which was
prolonged for several hours beyond midnight,
and next morning it was found that a majority
of those who had seceded from Riel were again
on friendly terms with him."(l)

On January 19, a2 mass meeting of the inhabitants was
- held and Smith was permitted to read his Commission, the

Queen's letter and other papers, Riel acting ss inter~f‘

(1) Ibid. pp.922 - 923.
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preter. The result of the meeting was that forty
delegates were appeinted to meet on Jaﬁuary 25, 'with
the object of considering the Subject of ¥r. Smith's
Commission, and to decide what would be best for the
welfare of the country.!' The English as a body, and

a large_nuébar of the French then declared their entire
satisfaction with Smith's explanations, and their
willingness to unite with Canada under approved
conditions.(1)

Thé g@onvention met as arranged on Jamary 25, with

Judge Black as Chairman, Caldwell and Schmidt as Secret-
aries, and Riel and Ross as Interpret;rs, and it contine
ued in session unti;~February 10. On the Tth, a List of
Rights, prepared by a Committee composed of Thomas Bunn,
Jemes Ross, Dr. Bird, Louis Riel, Louis Schmidt, and
Charles Nolin, was presented to kr. Smith for his appr@val.
He requested time to consider it, and at a later session ‘
of the Convention answared separately the reguests cont-
ained in the terms. It would appear that a lavge ma jority
of the delegates were satisfied with the answers to their
List of Righta, and expressed the opinion that the Canad-
ian Government would deal fairly with‘the inhabitants of
Red River. Smith then invited the Convention to send two

AN

(1) Ibid. p. 924.
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or more vepresentatives to Gitawa for ;hevpurpase af
dealing with the Canadian Gavarnﬁent; and three were
chosen in the persons of Father Richot, Judge Black and
kr. A. H. Bcott. The chosing of these delegates led to
a motion by Riel, Ross, and O'Donohue, urging that
recognition and reergauization of the Provisional Govern-
ment should come first, but the Engliéh delegates said
they had no power 1o vote on'such matters without consult-
ing their constituents. They also held that the Hudson's
Bay Company exercised the only legal governing powers in
the Settlement until the transfer sheuld take place. It
was decided toc consult Governor McTavish; and two members
of the Convention, Sutherland and Fraser, weré‘sent to
interview him. lNcTavish' reply was that of a man who hsad
reached almost the limits of human endurance. "Form a
Government for God's sake, ané restore peace and order in
the Settlement.%(1) |

The work of the Convention was finished on the 10th

of February, when it nominated a Provisional Government.

Riel promised that 2ll the prisoners should soon be releas-

éd and on the 11th and 12th, six or eight of them were set

at liberty. Dr. Cowan was informed that, as they were all

[

(1) Beggs. Op. 6it. p.269.
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to be di'scharged without delay, the rooms which had
been occupied would be placed at his.dispesai in a day
or two, after they had been thoroughly cleaned aﬁt.(l)
Riel was now at the héight of his poweé. His
government was estsblished and had been recognized by
the following authorities, namely, thevCanéntion,
representing the inhabitants of the Setﬁlement; Governor
McTavish, représenting the former government of the |
Hudson's Pay Company; and Donald A, Smith, Special Comme

issioner for the Government of the Dominion ef Canada.r

All prospects were bright, when an event occurred which
produced mest disastrous results.

A number of Canadian settlers living at ?artage la
Prairie, ignorant_of the actions of the Convention at Fort
Garry and strongly in sympathy with their fellow country-
men who had been imprisoned by the Metis, had resolvéd to
send an expedition under Captain Boulton to liberate the
prisoners. Dr. 8chultz had escaped from the géol at Fort
Garry (2) and it was expected that in the meantime he
would collect a force from tﬁe districts around the Lower
Fort. A junction was te-be‘effaated, and Fort Garry was
to be gufﬁrised and captured. Due to the failure of the
English settlers at XKildonan to answer the summons to

raise @ volunteer force, the plan was a complete failure,

(1) Oliver. Op. cit. 927.
(2) New Nation. Jan.28,1870.
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resulting in forty-eignt meﬁbers of the Portsge party
being taken inis Fort Garry as prisoners. Concerning
the whole scheme Commissioner Smith later reported to
the Dominion Government, in part, as follows:

"But now the rising was not only rash but pur-
poseless, as, without its intervention, the
prisoners would unquestionably have been releas~
ed, The party was entively unorgenized, indiff.
erently armed, unprovided with food even for one
meal and whelly incapable of coping with the
French, now reunited, who, to the number of at
least seven hundred were prepared to offer the
most determined resistance, which, as they were
in possession of a number af guns (six and three
pounders), ample stores of ammunition, provisions,
and every other requisite, they could have done

most effectually. My sympathies were, in great

measure, with the Portage men, whom I believed

to have been actuated by the best of motives; But

under the circumstances it was not difficult to

forsee that the issue could not be otherwise

than disastrous to their cause. The attempt was,

therefore, to be deplored, as it resulted in

placing the whole Settlement at the feet of Riel."(1).

The action of the Portage party was unwise for various.

reasons but more particularly because it intreduced a new
element of_vielgﬁcg which led to the shedding of blood.
Hitherto there had been demonstrations by armed forces of
both parties in the disturbances, but these nad stopped
short of bloody action. The Portage partiy was directly.
responsible for the killing of two men, Sutherland and

(1) oliver. Op. cit. p.927.
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Parisien, and indirectly rvesponsible for the death of
6thers, Scott and Goulet. (1)

The leader of the Portage party, Captain Boulton,
was amongst the prisoners captured by the Vetis, and was
tried by courtemartial and sentenced to be shot at noon,
February 18th. Owing to the intercession of évery influ-
ential men among the English, and also &t the entreaty
of the Roman Catholic clergy, the sentence was postponed
until the 19%th, and'in the interval Smith and others tr;ed
tabpoint out to Riel the mistake that would be made if the

erder of the Court were executed. Riel took the view that
the English settlers and Canadians had despised the French
Half-breeds, believing that they would not dare to tske

the life of anyone. He believed that, under the circum=

(1) Parisien, who was thought to be a spy in the
employ of Riel, killed Sutherland, Peb. 15th,
when attempting to escape from the Portage men .
gathered at Kildonan. He was captured by the
party and received such a severe clubbing at the
hands of Thomas Scott, that he died on February
21st. (de Tremaudan. HExecution of Scott. C.H.R.
Sept. 1925. p. 229) Scott was made prisoner with
the Portage party and was shot Harch 4th,, after
‘having been court-martialled by orders of the
Provisional Government. Goulet was drowned on
September 13th, as he was fleeing from.¥innip-
eg mob which believed that he had been one of
those who had taken part in the shooting of
Scott. '
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stances, it would be impossible to have peace and estebe
lish ordey in the country, and that an example should,
:tharéfore, be made.(1) He finally yielded to the per-
suasive efforts of the Commissioner but asked a favor in
return, |

® fCanada has disunited us; w111 you use your
influence to reunite us % ....ﬁe want only our
Just rights as British subijects and we want the
BEnglish to join us simply to obtain these.'
‘Then', I remarked, 'I shall at once see them
and induce them to go on with the election of
delegates for that purpose.'....The Bishop of
Rupert's Land the Protestant clergy generally,
now counselled the pecple to elect their dele-
~gates without loss of time....We visited the
different parts of the Settlement, and found
that in several parishes, the people, and those
the most loyal to the British Crown and most
desirous for union with Canada, had alrecady
chosen their councillors,® (?)

The elections took place on February 26, and theﬁPﬁovia-
ional Government was fully established, under conditions
which, as 8ir John A. Macdonald had admitted, made it a

"Gévernment possessing certain sovereign rights by the

' jus gentium?'®, |

It would appear, therefore, that in the two months

immediately fallewing the arrival at Red River of a Speeial
Qammiseionﬁ?rsm Canada, great progress had been made towards

& pescezble setitlement of the Vetis demsnds, A Convention

e

’(1) Ibid. p.929,

(2) Ibid. pp. 929+930. Smith*s report to the Dominion

Government.
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representative of all sections in the community, had
been held; a List of Rights had been, in large meas-
ure, approved by all parties; and the vast majority
of the inhabitants had, directly or indirectly, agreed
to the organization of a Provigional Gavernment. A
small group from outside the immediaﬁe boundaries of
Red River had expressed disapproval, but had failed to
find support within the Settlement for any action direct-
ed against those in charge of the Gavarnment at Fort
Garry. A de facto Government had thus béen established,

whoﬁe,legal status has sometimes been challenged, but

whose practical authority at the time was absolute. (1)

(1) For a discussion of the position of this
government see pages 101 ff, .In this
connection it should be remembered that it
is, at all times, exceedingly difficult to
determine just when a'de facto' government
becomes legitimate. It would appear, how-
ever, that many examples might be quoted to
show that the actions and legislation of de
facto administrations were later legitimized
by legally constituted authorities. e.g.
the actions of the various parliaments under
Cromwell and during the revolution of 1688
in England; the legislation of the various
Southern States in the American Civil War.
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Lengthy references have been made to the 'blunders'
of the Canadisn Government and its representatives in
Red River; mention has also been made of the Schultz
‘blunder'. On March 4, 1870, Riel and the Provisional
Government committed e terrible snd tragic ‘'blunder'y by
executing sentence of death upon Thomas Scott.

*The execution of Thomas Scott was the most
conspicuous event of the Red River 'rebellion!
of 1870, Without this tragedy there would,
indeed have been no 'rebellion', for the Prove

isionaﬁ Government did not resist the regular
officers once temporary misunderstanding had

been removed....the expeditionary force of

Canadian militia, sent to Fort Garry under

Colonel Wolseley, was the direct result; the

indirect and much more costly result was a

widening of the gulf between the two races

throughout the Dominion.”(1)
The correctness of the above statement is found in the fact
that the aVérage Canadian citizen of the present day, if he
knows anything at all about the early history of Ménitoba,
remembers the Provisiocnal Government snd Riel for the
'blunder!, ratlhier than for the List of‘Rights and actions in
defence of the rights of the WMetis.

There are two opposing and apparently irreconcilable

views held concerning the Scott episode. On .one side are

te be found certain popular writers of Csnadian History,

-~

The editor of the magazine introduced an article by
(1) de Tremsudan. Hxecution of Thomas Scott.

C.H.R. Sept. 1925. p.222, with the sentences

gquoted. '



74..
MURDER OR EXBCUTION 9

such as Charles G. D, Roberts, and those who uphold his
statement that
"gcott was taken out and shot like a dog in
the Snow, under the walls of Fort Garry. It
was not an execution, it was a murder, and a.
particularly brutal one."{1)
On the other side are found A, G. ¥orice, and those who
bvelieve with him that |
pacr .
"L'execution de Scott n'etait un meurte®(2)-
and base their arguments on the legality of the Previsé

ional Government.

The facts of the case upon whieh there appears to be

general agreement wefe‘és follows: Thomas Scott had come
to Red River as & member of the survey party under ﬁr,Snow,
and on Novewber 19, had been fined for assaulting his
employer. He had been one of those who had gathered in

Dr. SBchultz' house to resist the first Provisional Goyvern-
ment formed by the Metis, but had later left the house and
on December 6, had been arrested and imprisened with the

- other members of the 8chultz group in Fort Garry gaol. He,
~together with lair, Drever, and Byman, had escaped from
Fort Garry, and had made his way to Portage la Prairié,

later being taken prisoner with the expedition under Captain

{1) Roberts. History of Canada. p.364.

- {(2) Morice. Aux sources de l'histoire Manitobaine. p.92.
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Boulton. He was a troublesome prisoner,

*insulting his guards, who were treating him
well....resisting his guards by main strength
and forcing the doors of the prison. 6n the
last day of February, Thomas Scott was so
violent that some of the letis, in a fit of
exasperation, seized him, dragged him out, and
were preparing to sacrifice him when one of
the French councillors came by, snatched him
away from them, and sent him back under guard
to his cell. On March lst, Riel was notified
and at once investigated the circumstances of
this affair, trying to pacify the guards, but
on this very day Thomas Scott renewed his out-
rageous conduct and the soldiers made a great
outery demanding that the matter should be
left to a military court. Riel did all he
could to extract from Bcott a promise of
veaceable conduct; Scott jeered at him and

insulted him....His death was rendered inevite
able by the exigencies of the political situat-
ion at Red River."(1)
The guotation just completed was Riel's explanation of the
Scott affair, written at some date unknown. As leader of
the Government, he probably felt that "an example had to
be made", and Scott, because of his past record, furnished
a suitable subject.
stories have been told of personal jealousies existe-
ing between Riel and Scett, and that upon one occasion there
was a personal encounter, but no authentie information has
been found on that point. It has also been claimed that
Scott's trial was a mockery; that Riel was witﬁess, prosec-
(1) de Tremaudan. Ezecution of Thomas Scott. C,H.R.
Sept. 1925, p.235. For further explanation of .
his attitude towards,and reasons for the execut-
ion, see the letter written by Riel and Lepine to

Lieutenant-Governor Merris, Jan.3.1873. Sessional
Papers, 1874. p.200 ff. '
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utor and judge; that the evidence was in French and was
taken before ithe prisoner ceme into the court room.(1)
‘Contradicting those statements made by the Rev, Georgé
Young, is the following by Ir. de Tremsudan:
"1 have it from aemé of the men who sat on the
trial that Riel had nothing whatever to do with
the proceedings taken, the decision arrived at,
and the execution performed, beyond, of course,
the appointment of the tribunal itself, and
except, before and after the verdict was rend-
ered, to plead with his people for mercy."(2)
Although he gave a very detailed account of the whole

affair in his report to the Canadian Government, Commiss-

ioner Smith did net make any reference to any miscarriage
of justice in the trial of Saett; and it would seem that
this might be used as cirvcumstantial evidence in support
of the position that the courtemartial was conducted acce
ording to thé regular forms. ilowever, as the verdict was
not unanimous, four voting for the sentence of death, one
against it, and one in favour of exiling ﬁhe defendant,
Riel mignt have used his poweré as ?resiaent.ta grant a
pardon. His refgsal to heed the petitions for clemency
which were made by numerous members of the Settlement,

including Young, 8mith, Pere lLestanc and McTavish, was a

(1) Young., Hanitoba i‘emories. p.l133.

(2) de Trémaudan, Execution of Thomas Scott.
C.H.R. Bept. 1925, p.232.
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tregic mistake which produced disastrous results,

Little attention nged be paid ta,mény gruesome
stories told canaérninglth@ actual shooting of iecott. 1If
the wotst ke true, they only prove that the firing-squad
of six‘mﬁn bungled their job, and thereby gave the oppon-
ents of Hiel and his Government an apportﬁnity to play
upon the sympathies and prejudices of outsiders, especs
ielly in Ontsvie. 1t is certain that rnothing would be
lost in the relation by such bitier enemies of Riel as

Dr. dchultz and Chaerles Yair, both of whom wade their way

back to Canada shortly aftsr the Hecoti affair. However,
there is grave doubt as to the authenticity of thouse

stsri&sjaa they all seem to have been Lased upon second-

hand information such as that contained in Wr. Ashdown's

manusceript referred to abvove.(l) ¥r. Ashdown was in the
vFort at the time of the execution but apparently knew
nething of the details of the shooting and obtained his
informetion from others.

"At a conference in the Fort a little later,
Bditor Robinson told me that somebody hsd

esked Riel if he knew certainly that the shots
had bveen fatal, Riel replisd st once that

deeth hed Ween instantaneous, and to prove that
there had been no prolonged suffering he invite
ed those present to mcecompany him to ihe bastion
snd view the bedy for themselves, Fut upon open-
ing the bvastion door there were immediately heard
moans, Major Robinson ssid, and then a voice

R

(1) See page 43,
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distinctly daying, 'Oh, let me out, let me

out.' Riel, who had evidently himself believed
that death had been instantanenus, retreated
hastily, and, puehing back those in the passage,
gave an ovrder to the guard, In a moment & shot
was heard in the bastion."(1l)

In straight contradiction of Major Robinsen's story

&8 reteld Ly Mr. Ashdown, is the account of another eye-

witness and participant.

"Three bullets, two of which took effect in full
chest, struck Scott and he fell, Eefore I had
time to make sBure whether he was dead, one
Guillemette....who was a little intoxicated, ran
to the body, turned it over, and discharged his
revolver at his head, The body was placed in &
coffin and removed to the bastion. After a while
some people came to tell me that they could hear
groans in the bastion., I went to investigate and
remained near the bvody for two and one-half hours.
All I could hear was the wind hissing through the
buildings. The body was taken out of the Port by
Blzear Goulet and Hlzear Lagimodiere. HNo one but
them know what has been done with it. The reason
why the burisl place of Scott was kept secret was
the fear we had that Orangemen would make a sort
of pilgrimage ground out of it."(2)

Whatever may have been the effects in Canada of the
news of the death of Scott, it was followed by & period of S
profound peace in Red River. From thst time forward, no
attenpt was made to upset the rule of the Provisiohal

Government, although it was msinteined by one, never

T S——

(1) Winship. Winnipeg Free Press. Feb.18, 1928.

(2) de Tremaudan. Hxecution of Thomas Scott.
C.H.R. ©Sept., 1925. p.233.
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friendly to Riel that
“"liany people who had general sympathy with Riel's
fight for his people as he saw them, left him
after his foul deed. Some time later, when he
attempted to make some appointments to magister-
ial positions under his alleged government, he
found everyone estranged and resentful."(1)

It would appear, from the evidence just presented,
that the shooting of Thomas Scott was an execution carried
out by the Provisional Government due to a mistaken sense
of political expediency. It was a 'tragic blunder! for

which a high price was later paid by the Metis' leaders.(2)

(1) MecEeth. Louis Riel's Starmy Career. p.43.

(2) Por further discussion of this point see
pages 100 ff. :
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THE LIST OF RIGHTS AND MANITOBA ACT.

On March 9, Bishop Tache arrived in Red River,
having returned hastily from Rome at the reguest of the
Canadian Government. Fefore leaving Ottawa on Pebruary
16, he had had an interview with the Prime Vinister and
had received a letter outlining the hopes and plans of
the Dominion Government for Red River Territory.

"I hope that ere you arrive at Fort Garry,
the insurgents, after the explanations that
have been entered into hy Messvs. Thibault,
de Balaberry and Smith, will have laid down

their arme, and allow Governor ¥cTavish teo
resume the administration of public affairs.

In such case, by the act of the Imperial
Parliament ef last session, all the publie
functionaries will still remain in power,
and the Council of Assiniboias will be rest-
ored to their former position....¥e have
fully explsined to you....that it is the in=-
tention of Canada to grant to the people of

. the North«West the same free institutions
which they themselves enjoy. Had these un-
fortunate events not oceurred, the Canadien
Government had hoped, long ere this, to have
received a report from the Council, through
¥r. ¥cDougall, as to the best means of speedily
organizing the government with representative
institutions....In case a delegation it app-
ointed to proceed to Ottawa, you can assure
them that they will be kindly received and
their suggestions fully considered; their

. exXpenses, coming here and returning, and
while staying in Ottawa, will be defrayed by
US.seeBhould the question arise as to the
consumption of any stores or goods belonging
to the Hudson's EBay Company by the insurgents,
you are authorized to inform the leader that
if the Company's government is restored, not
only will there be a general amnesty granted,
but in case the Company should ¢laim the pay-
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ment for such stores, that the Canadien
Government will st%nd between the insurgents
and 11 harm."(1)
From 8t. Paul on February 23, Tache had telegraphed a copy
of the Bill of Rights of February 7, to Hen. Joseph Howe,
and on the 25th head received the following reply:

 "Propositions in the main setisfactory; but let
the delegation come here to settle terms."(2)

. On his arrivel in Red River, the Bishop proclaimed & gen=
eral amnesty, although in the interval since he had seen
Hacdonald, scott had been shot, and the'governmenﬁ of the
,CQmpany had not been restored. His action was the cause
of trouble at a later date when the Canadian Government
repudiated responsibility.
At a meeting of the Council of the Provisional Govern

ment on Mareh 15, the following resolution was passed!

# 1st. That we, the rayreséntativaa of the

inhabitants of the North-West, consider that

the Imperial Government, the Hudson's Bay

Company, and the Canadian Government, in stip-

ulating for the transfer of the CGovernment to

the Dominion Government, without first consulte

ing, or even notifying the people of such trans-

 fer, have entirely ignored our rights as pecpie

of the North-West Territory.

2nd. That notwithstanding the insults and

sufferings borne by the people of the Xorth=-

West heretofore; which sufferings they still
endure - the loyalty of the people of the

——

(1) Sessional Papers 1874, p.19.
(2) Ibid. p.20.
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North-West towards the Crown of England remains
the same, provided the rights, properties,
usages and customs of the people be respected; ;
and we feel assured that as British subjects
such rights, properties, usages and customs
Will undoubtedly be respected.%(1)

At the same méeting a new draft of the Rill of Rights waé
prepared, differing from that of February 7, in several
minor details, but principally in that it asked for PpProve
incial status. Not only because it formed a background
for the Manitoba Act,1870, btut also because it is the
printed proof of the reasonableness of the demands made
by the people of Red River and, therefore, is a good answer
to those who regard the movement éa disloyal to British
institutiena; & copy of the List of Rights, March 15, 1870,
is shown forthwith,(2)

#1st, That the Territories, heretofore known as

Rupert's Land and the North-West, shall not

enter into Confederation of the Dominion, except

as a province, 1o be styled and known as the

Province of Assiniboia, and with all the riphts

and privileges common to the different provinces

of the Dominion. :

2nd., That we have two rebresentativas in the Sen=

ate, and four in the House of Commons of Canada,

until such time as an increase in population .
entitles the province to a greater representation.

Rt o

(1) oliver. Op. cit. p.915.

(2) The full text of the List of Rignts is not freq-
uently found in Becondary accounts of the period,
and many misapprehensions as to its contents have
become current. In gcongequence it has been found
advisable to quote it in full,
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srd. That the Province of Agsiniboiz shall not
be held liable, at any time, for any portion of
the public debt of the Dominion, contracted
before the date the said province shall have
entered the Confederation, unless the said prove
inee shall have first received from the Dominion
the full amount for which the said province is
to be held lisble,

4th., That the sum of eighty thousand dollars be
paid annually by the Dominion Government, to the
Local lLegislature of this province.

5th., That all properties, rights and privileges
enjoyed by the people of this province, up to
~the date of our entering into the Confederation,
be respected, and that the arrangement and cone
firmation of all customs, usages and privileges
be left exclusively to the Local lLegislature,

6th. That during the term of five years the
Province of Assiniboia shall not be subjected to
any dirvect taxation, except such as way be imp-
osed by the Local Legislature for municipal or
local purposes.

Jth, That a sum of money, equal to eighty cents
per head of the population of this prévince, be
paid annually by the Canadian Government to the
Local legislature o¢f the said province, until
such time as the said population shall have ine
creased to six hundred thousand.

8th. That the Local Legislature shall have the
right to determine qualifications of members to
represent this provinee in the Parliament of
Canada and in the Local lLegislature.

9th. That in this province, with the exception of
uncivilized and unsettled Indians, every male
native citizen who has attained the age of twentye
one years; and every foreigner, being & British
subject, who has attained the same, and has resided
three years in the province, and is a householder}
and every foreigner other than a British subject,
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who has resided here during the same period,
being 2 householder, and having taken the oath
of allegience, shall be entitled to vote at the
election of members for the Local Legislature

and for the Canadian Parliament. It being under-
gtood that this article be subject to amendment,
exclusively by the Local Legislature.

10th, That the bvargain of the ludson's Tay Comp-~
any, in the respect to ihe transfer of the govern-
ment of this country to the Dominion of Canada, be
annulled so far as it interferes with the rights of
‘the people of Assiniboia and so far as it would
affect our future relations with Canada,

ilth, That the Local Legislature of the Province of
Assiniboia shall have full control of all the pub-

liec lands of the province, and the right to annul
all acts or asrrangements made or entercd into with

the North-West, now called the Province of Aseinib-
oia. o

12th. That the Government of Canada appoint a
Commissioner of Hngineers to explore the various
- districts of the Province of Assiniboia, and to
lay before the Local lLegislature a report of the
mineral wealth of the prevince, within five years
from the date of our entering into Confederation.

13th, That treaties be concluded between Canada and
the different Indian tribes of the Province of
Assiniboia, by and with the advice and co-operation
of the Local Legislature of this province,

14th. That an uninterrupted steam comwunicetion
from Lake Superior to Fort Garry be guaranteed to
be completed within the space of five years.

15th, That all public buildings, bridges, roads,
and other public works ke at the cost of the Domine
ion Treasury. '

i6th. That the English and French languages be ‘
common in the Legislature, and in the Courts, and’
that all public documents as well as Acts of the
- Legislature, be published in both languages,

rveference to the public lands of Rupert's ILsnd snd
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17th, That whereas the French and ﬂnmlzsh»speaklng

- people of Assinivois, are so equally divided as to
nurbers yet so united in their interests, and so
connected by commerce,family connections, and other
political and social relatlons. that it has happily
been found impossible to bring them into hostile
collision, although repeated attempts have bLeen
made by designing strangers for reasons known %o
themselves to bring about so rulnaus znd disastr-
ous an event.

And whereas, after 211 the troukles and apparent
dissensions of the passt, the result. of mimunder-
standing eamong themselves they have as soon as the
evil agencies referred to above were removed, become
as united and friendly as ever; therefore, as a
meens to strengthen this union and friendly feeling
among all classes we deem it expedient and.advisable:

Thet the Lieutenant Governor who may. be appointed
for the FProvince of Assinibola should be femiliax

}wzth both the Prengh and Englisk lenguages.

18th, That the Judges of the Superior Court spezk
the iinglish and French 1anguages.

A9th. That all debts contracted by the Provisional
Government of the Terrltory of the NortheWest, now
called Assiniboia, in consequence of the illegsl and
inconsiderate meesures adopted by Canadian officials
to bring about & civil war in our midst, be paid out
of the Dominion Treasury, and thalt none of the membe
ers of the Provisicnal Government or any of those
acting under them be in any wap held liable with
regard to the movement, or any of the actions which
led to the present negotiations.

20th. That in view of the present exceptional posit~
ion of Assiniboia duties upon goods imported into

the province shall, except in the case of spirituous
liquors, continue as at present for at least three
years from the date of our entering the Confederation,
and for such further time as may elapse, until there
be uninterrupted railread communication between Winn-
ipeg and 3t. Paul, and also stesm communication be=
tween Winnipeg and Lake Superior.®(1)

(1) Ivid. pp. 915-918.
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On March 16, the Provisional Government released
all politicai prisoners and two days later Commissioner
8mith set out on his return trip to Canada. He had been
in the district for nesarly threé months as Commissioner
for Canada,

"to enquire into the causes, nature, znd extent
of the obstruction offered at Red River....and
‘also to enguire into the causes of discontent
and dissatisfaction....and to explain to the
“inhabitants of the said Country, the principles
on which the Government of Canada intends to
aduminster the Government of the Country....and
to take steps to remove any misapprehensions
which may exist....and to veport to our Governor
General the result of such enquiries; and of the

best mode of quieting and removing such discontent
and dissatisfaction.®(1) : :

The offieial account of his activities during that period
is contained in his report, written at Ottawa, April 12,
15?3, His ‘unofficial' words and deeds largely remain
,hiddén in an intriguing mystery which, if salvéd, might
throw a great deal of light upon some phases of the diétﬁ
urbahees.(z) One biographer has stated that for the first
two weeks after Smiths arrival at Tort Garry

"He was under close surveillance, two or more
guards being charged with that duty; but this

(1) Ibid. p.208.

(2) Was Smith friendly to Riel ? Did he make personal
promises and offer bribes to the Metis ? These
and other questions of like nature, arouse our
curiosity, but it is probable that we shall remain
unsatisfied, as the most likely sources of infor-
mation, the papers and documents of the H,B.C.,
are not open to publie inspection.
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w28 not the case with his bra%her«ih—law, Hr.
Hardisty. The laiter now began to busy hime
self in carrying out Mr. Smith's plan, which
was, in effect, to secure partisans amongst
- the half-breeds. This was a delicate matter,
- requiring considerable tact....Where promises
would not serve, pecuniary bribes were effect-
ive." (1)
Another bibgrapher,»who appears to have formed a rather
poor opinion of Smith and whose book reveals a rather
sketchy knowledge of the Red River troubles, has written
that promises were made to Riel that were never fulfilled
and that the Ex-President of the Provincisal Gaverﬁment

was _paid, by Smith, to‘leave Red River.{2)

(1) Willson. Strathcona. p.216.

(2) Preston. Stirathcona. p.50. ; :
“"He reached the Stone Fort at Selkirk late at
might. Riel heard of his arrival snd immediate
ely went up the river %o see him. He was told
by the attendant that ¥r. Smith had retired for
the night, but insisted that he must see him.
While the attendant enquired whether I'r. Smith
would see Riel, the latter walked into the bedw
-room unannounced. His reception, however, was
such that he returned at once, passing out of
the gates with a crushed appearance in strong

~ contrast to the manner that he had been assume
ing for several weeks in the Settlement. The
brief interview at the Stone Fort opened his
eyes. Certain promises were made to Riel and
his followers, in the course of the negotiat-
ions, which afterwards had a most disturbing
effect in Canadian politics, and in regard to
which Donald A, Smith and the clergy seemed to
have retained most strangly contradictory recolls«
ections of the same events. At any rate, Riel
was persuaded to see the error of his ways. He
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¥r. 8mith, later raised to the Lritish peerage
with the title of Lord Strathcona and Mount Royal, was
always much concerned with the rumors and reports that
the Hudson's Bay Company's officials and servants at
Red River had been sympathetic towards, and secretly in
lesgue with the Metis Movement. In his rvreport he denied
2ll such innuendos, |

"Errors, many and grave, have, 1t cannot be denied,
been committed on all sides, but wilful and intent-
ionel neglect of duty, cannot, I feel convinced,

be laid to the charge of either the Hudsons Bay
Company, or their representatives in the Country.
Personally, I have keen entirely unconnected with
the administration of affairs in that department.®(1)

(cont'd) was paid $5,000 (£1000) by Donald A.Smith
under confidential instructions by Bir John A.
lizcdonald, who afterwards reimbursed him from the
decret Service Pund, placed at the disposal of the
Ottawa Government by Parlisment. Riel then left
the scene of the rebellion to reside in the United
States until the promises made to him should be
fulfilled.¥

(1)oliver. Op. cit. p.936. In this connection the
biographer last mentioned has related the followe
ing incident, though he failed to quote any
authority for ithe statement. “Upon one welleknown
occasion, during the life-time of the late Arch-
bishop Tache, he (Lord Strathcona) visited Winnipeg,
and endeavoured to get the approval ef that great
leader of the Roman Catholic bierarchy to a state-
ment that the officials of the Hudson's Bay Comp=-
any were absolutely free from complicity in the
Louis Riel episode. But the venerable Archbishop
quietly intimated that, if any such statement was
made by Lord Strathcona, he would prbduce documents
that would settle the question definitely for all
time, upon lines that would create a startling
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Towards the end of the month, the three delegates to
Ottawa, appointed by the Congention, left for the Capital,
taking with them a copy of the List of Rights, containing
some amendments which had been added, it would seem, at a
secrel meeting in the Bishop's Palace in St. Boniface, on
the eve of departure.(l)

While these delegates were busy with the Dominion
Government, in preparing and having pésaeg the Manitoba
Act, affairs progressed smoothly at the scene of the

earlier disturbances in Red River, The proof of this

statement is suggested in a Proclamation to the People
~of the North-West, issued by Riel, April 19, 1870.

"Let the assembly of twenty eight representatives
which met ofi the 9th of March be dear to the
people of Red River; that assembly has shown
itself worthy of confidence. It has worked in
union; the members devoted themselves to publie
interests, and yielded only to the sentiments of
good will, duty, and generosity. Thanks to that
noble conduct public authority is now strong;
that strength will be employed to sustain and
protect the people of the country. Today the

O

(cont'n) sensation throughout Canada. Consequently
negotiations came to a termination somewhat hurre
iedly." (Preston. Strathcona. p.52) Though he
was appointed as Special Commissioner for Canada
at Red;River, Smith was also concerned in protect=-
ing the interests of the Company. It would appear
that in so far as the two objectives coincided, he
performed his task well, and that his presence
during the Red River disturbances had a moderating
influence and helped to prevent much violence and
blood=-shed,

~(1)sSee a letter by Archbishop Tache in the Wiﬁnipeg
Free Press, Dec. 27, 1889.
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Government pardons all those whom political
differences led astray only for a time. An
amnesty will be generously accorded to all
those who will submit to the Government; who
will discountenance or inform against dangerous
gatherings. From this day forth the public
highways are open, and the Hudson's Bay Company
can now resume business.(l)....The Government
will take every precsution to prevent this
peace from being disturbed. While internally
all is thus returning to order; externally also
matters are looking favorable. Canada invites
the Red River people to an amicable arrangement
os+ssLlet us remain united and we shall be happy,
with the strength of unity."(2)

On May 12, 1870, the Manitoba Act received the Royal

assent (3) and was reported to a meeting of the Provisional

Government at Red River, June 24, by Father Richot, who had
returned from Ottawa one week earlier. The assembly voted
to accept the terms of the Act, and Archbishop Tache went to
Ottawa to deliver the news to the Dominion Government.
When he returned to Red River on. August 23, he was just one
day ahead of the(expeditionary force under the commend of
Colonel Wolseley.'

There have been at least three currént misconeeptions;

m

(1) It was later suggested by those who had opposed the
Provisional Government that this permission to the
H.B.C. was an attempt to fulfill the cenditions,
stated in Macdonald's letter to Tache, necessary..
for the granting of an amnesty and for compensation
being paid by Canada to the H.,B.C. for losses suff~
ered by the Company during the disturbances.

(2) oliver. Op. cit. p.918.
(3) Ibid. p.964.
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concerning the Wolseley Expeditionary Farce, namely, that
its arrival in Red River was a complete surprlse to Riel
and his fellowarsz that it was a military expeditian. sent
out for the purpese of making war upon the peaple of Red
River; and that it was sent out to punlsh the 'murdsrers'”
af Thomas Scott. | | ;

Some evidence to show that_theré was no element of
surprisé é% Red River upon the arrival of the soldieré,
has been adduaed.above.(l) Further proof has been found

in & copy of a letter from Riel to Tache at Ottawa, dated

July 24, 1870,
"We are making ready for the arrival of the
Governor....the troops and the Governor shall
be received with enthusiasm,"(2) :

The fact that_the ex@gdition made use of the American
canals on the Great Lakes is proof that Colonel Wolseley
was not sent to make war on the inhabitants of the Territ-
ories, as the authorities at Washington demanded a strict
guarantee from the Dominion Government that this was not a

military expedition. Noreover, Joseph Howe had informed

Bishop Tache that "It is an expedition of Peace."(3) The

(1) see page 55,
(2) sessional Papers, 1874. pP.37.
(3) Ivid: p.31l.
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British Secretary of State for the Colonies had written
to the Canadian Government that,
"The troops must not be empleyed to imposse the
sovereignty of Canada on the population of
Red River, if the latter refuse to admit it."(1)
EBishop Tache had also received assurance from General
Lindsay, who had under his authority the troops in Canada,
that
| "It was an expedition of peace; that this dend-
ing had nothing to do with the movement of the
preceding winter."(2)

The fact that the plans for the sending of the exped-

ition were made before March 4, would prove that the
purpose was not to punish the people who had shared in the
shooting of Thomas Scott. Thus, Sir John A, Macdonald
wrote to Sir John Rose, Canadian High Commissioner in Great
Britain, on March 11, before had had any news of the
death of Scott:
- "The foolish criminal attempts ofeceecgndecee-
~to renew the fight added greatly to Riel's
strength....We shall receive the delegation with
all kindness, and, I think, beyond a doubt, make
an arrangement with them; but we shall, at the
same time, prepave for the expedition to leave

here at the end of April or the beginning of
May."(3)

(1) Benoit. Tache. Vol.l p.82.
(2) Ibid. Vol.2 p.109.
(3) Pope. lemoirs of lMacdonald. Vol.2. p;62.
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It is certain that when Macdonald wrote the above letter
he did hot know of the death of Scott, because on March 31,
twenty days later, the Governor General sent the following
message to the Colonial Secretary in London:

"We do not know yet if a rumour which several

newspapers have copled, to the effect that

Riel has shot an 1ndividua1 named Scott, is

true or false,"(1)
Another proof that the Wolseley expedition was not intended
as & punitive force is found in the copies of the letters -
and telegrams sent by the Dominion Government to Secretary
of State for the Colonies and his replies thereto, one of
which is quoted, bearihg the date of March 5, one day
after the death of Scott:

"Her Majesty's Government will give the proposed

military assistance provided reasonable terms are

granted Red River 8ettlers and provided your

Government enable Hexr WNajesty's Government to

proclaim the transfer of the Territory simultan~

eously with the movement of the fcrces.“(z) ;
While it is certain, therefore, that the official view of
the sending of the soldiers to Red River was that it was
neither a military nor a punitive expedition, it is equally
clear that many of the Ontario men who enlisted regarded
themselves as the avengers of 8cott. It was fear of this
element which lead Riel to abandon Fort Garry before Col-
onel Wolseley had taken possession.

(1) sessional Papers, 1874. p.115
(2) Quoted in....Hill, History of Manitoba. p.318.
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It is not necessary to follow the movements of the
traope on their trip to Red River nor to trace further
the events following their arrival. By August 24, when
they entered the gates of Fort Garry, the insurrection was
over and the leaders of the Provisional Government had
left the Fort. Riel had planned to receivevcolonel Wolsew
ley and the troops pérsonal}y, and to hand over his anth-
ority to the Queenfs representative, but an heur er(sa
before their arrival he was warhed to leave the Fort and,
aecording to his own story, as the Colonel was entering at
onérgate, "I was leaving at the other®. Thus ended what
has heen called the 'inglorious insurrection’(l)

The direct results of the insurrection are to be
found in the terms of the Manitoba Act, 1870, particularly
in clauses 1, 22, 30,and 31. Clause 1 provided for the
admission of the North-West Territories into the Déminion
of Canada as a Province, not as a Territory as at first
intended. Clause 22 enacted legislation regarding schools,
stating that

"The said Legislature may exclusively make laws
in relation to Bducation, subject and according
to the following provisions....”
Clause 31 set aside 1,400,000 acres of land in the Prov-
ince for the benefit of the families of the half-breed

A

(1) Martin., The Red River Settlement. Co. & P. Vol.l9.
P13,

(2) oliver. Op. cit. pp.964-9?5.
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residents. (lause 30, although it was probably drafted
in order to recompense the Canadian Government for the
price paid to the Hudson's Bay Company, through the
British Government, te relinguish its charter, may almost
be regarded as the penalty imposed on the Province of
Manitoba for disturbances sttendant upon its birth. In
that article it was stated that

"All ungranted or waste lands in the Province

shall be, from and after the date of the said

transfer, vested in the Crown, and administered

- by the Government of Canada for the purposes of

the Dominion...."*(1)

In summarizing the fare-roaching indirect effects of
the Red River disturbances, a noted authority on Canadian
History has expressed the view that

"Tfhe events of 1869«70 have sown Manitoban and

even Canadiad,W¥th dragons' teeth yielding ever

since a truly prolific harvest of racial and

religious controversy."(2)
Subsequent events make it easy to agree with this opinion.
The troubles that successive Governments have had over the
land—grants, the North-West Rebellion of 1885, the lanitoba
School Question, and the struggle on the part of the Prairie
Provinces to secdre from the Dominion Government contrel of

their own natural resources, furnish émple illustration

of this general contentien.

(1) oliver. Op. cit. pp.964-973.

(2) Martin., The First New Province of the Dominion.
C.,H.R. Vol. 1 (1920) p 377
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The respeqtivé authors of many useful Canadisan Hist»
ny texts, published for use in the schools of the Domine
ion, have written regarding the disturbances at Red River
in 1869-70, under the title of the Red River Rebellion.

It should be tolerably clear that the term is inaccurate,
misleading}and unjust. Against what Government did Riel
and his followers ;ebel ? If‘the Provisional Governments
are not included, there were only three possible govefn~
ing bodies in the Red River Settlement in the period
between 1865 and 1870,‘mamely; The Hudson's Bay Ccmpany,
as represented by the Governor and Council Qf Assiniboia;
the Iritish Government; and the Csnadian Government,

| In the discussion concerning the 'flag incident' (1)
evidence was brought forward to show that the events of
1869 did not constitute a rebellion against the British
Government. The Union Jack was flown by the letis at
Fort Garry and, if their own flag was also used, they did
but copy the example set by the Hudson's Bay Company and
Dr. Schultz' group, neither of which were ever aécused of
rebellion because of the flag.(2) Further evidence that

they were loyal to Great Britadn is found in the various

(1) see above p. 53 rf,
(2) Beggs. Op. cit. p.30.
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proclamations issued by Riel and his Council, and inaihe'
letters from persons iﬁtimately connected with the event.
On December 13, McDougall, writing to Riel, used this
phrase, | o | |

"As a representative of the Sovereign, to whom

you and they owe - and, as I am told, do not

wish to deny - allegiance...."(1)
In a letter of December 16, Sir Hohn A.Macdonald stated
that he was aware of the fact that the Red River people

were“net against the Sovereignty of Her Majesty or the

7gavernment.ef the Hudson's Bay Company, but to the assumpt-

ion of the government by Canade’(2) The Resolutions of
‘the Provisional Government of March 15, 1870, contain the
clause, | |

"The loyalty of the people of the North-West _
towards the Crown of lingland remains the same."(3)

The above‘ara just a few of the many examples that might be
guoted to éhew that the Netis were loyal British subjects;
Evidence in support of the view that Riel was person;j
ally loyal to the British Government in 1869,'is.§upplied
by the facts that he refused offers from the Uniﬁed States. -

of $4,000,000., men and arms; he quarrelled with O'Donohuex

(1) Willson. Strathcona. p.194,
(2) Wmerter. Correspondence. p.53.

(3) Oliver. Op. eit. p.915,
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'aver the matter of Fenians and American assistance; and
he later raised a forece to resist ﬁhe proposed PFenian raid
on Manitoba, and was publicly thanked by the Lieutenant-
Governor of the Province for his action.(l) It could be
argued as easily thet the Ontario group were rebels, as,
indeed, the Roman Catheolic historian, Morice, has done,

"The people of Assinibois had excellent reasons
for rising in 1869....Their rising was not a
rebellion against legitimate authority, but a
protestation against the invasion of their rights
by strangers, which circumstances rendered necess-
ary....There never was a rebellion at Red River..
..except that of the Canadians against the Govern-
ment the country had, with scarcely a dissenting
voice, given itself.® (2)

It is quite apparent that the other residents of the
| Colony did not believe that the lietis were rgbels ageinst
the Hudson's Bay Company. On the contrary, there was a
firm belief that the Company and the French were working
in close conjunction with each other. On November 5, leD-
. eﬁgall received a communication from the Canadian party at
Red River to the effect that

“the H.B.C. are evidently with the Rebels, and
their present role is to prevent your having any

{1) Morice. History of the R.C.Church. Vel.2. p.l2.
For a complete,of Riel and the so-called Fenian
raid of 1871, see the articles by de Tremaudan and
Pritchett in the C,H.R. for June 1923, and Nar. 1929,
Both articles indicate clearly that Riel was opposed
- to the Fenians, and that O'Donohue was very active
on their bvehalf,

(2) Ibid. p.18. For further evidence on this point dee
Sessional Papers, 1870. p.30,
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official intercourse with them. It is said that

the Rebels will support the Government of the

H.E.C, as it now exists."(1)
At 2 meeting of the Council of Assiniboia on October 25,
1869, Riel said that his party were perfectly satisfied
with the government in existence. (2) 1In the course afi
his correspendence with the Sectretary of State, MeDougall,
again and again, expressed the opinion that the Comvpany
and the Rebels were working in harmony to prevent Canada
taking over the district.(3) Further illustration of the
intimate connection between the Company and the Metis

party, may be found in the works of Beckles Willson, an

euthor who was always friendly to the Company. He stated
that at the time Colonel Wolseley's troops were entering
Fort Gerry a Lox of papers belonging to the Chief Trader,
Watt, were thrown down = well, and were later fished out
and burned. One letter was not destroyed; it had apparent-
1ly been written by Governor kcTavish, and contained the
following;

"It is a question whether McDougall should not

be starved out for his arrogance. Only I strong-

ly advise you to risk nothing for the greedy
London directory, from whom we are not likely to

(1) sessional Papers, 1870. p.31.
(2) Oliver. Op. cit. p.617.

(3) See pages 40 to 41 preceding.
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receive any thanks;...As for Riel, he is every
day strengthening himself, and all our work-
people are with him."(1)
The same author appears to have taken for granted coe
operation between Riel and the Hudson's Bay Company at
Red River, when he wrote:
"It is true the insurrection of 1869-1870 could
have been averted., It would have been easy,
through an agent of tact and eloquence, to have
dispelled the illusions which had taken possess»
ion of the Netis, and to have restored confidence
as to the policy of Canada., But was it the :
Hudson's Fay Company's duty to enlighten the agg-
riéeved inhabitants ? ....Was it the fault of the
Company that several ithousand wild Wetis children
of the wilderness, passionately attached to the
0ld order of things, were in their hearts loyal
to the Company, which fed and clothed and admine
istered law to them ?%(2)
Not only was there no hostility between the Metis and
- the Company, but there is evidence to show  that the Kildon-
an settlers and the American immigrants in Red River looked
more favorably on the French half-breeds than on the Canad-
ian party under Dr. Schultz. Support for the statement may
be found in Colonel Dennis' letter as quoted herein (p.37')
‘and in the fact that ¥ajor Loulton and his party from Por-
tage la Prairie found the Kildonan people to be opposed to

any use of force'against-Riel;@)ﬁe one has ever suggested

(1) willsen. Strathcona. p.265.

(2) Willson. The Great Company. p.494.
(3) see page 68 preceding.
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that the Kildonan men were afraid to attack, and it would -
seem probable that sympathy for,.nét feai of, Riel)prompted _
their insction. It is also & fact that very litile effort
was ever put forth by any Red River inhabitant to earn the
$5000 reward offered by the Ontario Government for the
capture of the *murderers' of Scott. It was not until 1874
that the money was paid ic ten pefsons for the arrest of
Lepine. As Riel was in the district during those years,
this inactivity in the face of the large financial réward
would tend to show that the méﬁis formed the party popular
with alluclasses; in the Settlement,.thé Canadian residents
being excepted. .

As Canada had no authority at Red River until the
Order in Council of June 23, 1870, transferred Rupert's
_Lané to the Dominion, and since Riel offered no resistance
to Canadian authority after that date, it is obvious that .
the Metis did not rebel against the Canadian Government in
1869.

) Closely associated with the question‘af ‘rebellion'
has been the dispute over the shaoting of Thomas Scott.
Those who regard the Metis as Rebels look upon the shoot-
ing as a murder, and, per contra, theée who regard Riel as
the defender of Yetis rights in the Red River district,
justify the ‘'execution' of the troublesome Irishman. The

argument has centered around the legality or the illegality
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of the Prcvisién&l Govérnment, a point overiwhich learned
constitutional lawyers ha#e disagreesd. Froﬁ_amidat the
bewilderment caused bifgkact definitions and legal termin-
ology of the disputants, one clear fact has emerged, how-
ever, that on March 4, 1870, the Provisional Government was
& recognized govérning body in Red Biver.(l) There can be
no doubt that MeDougall's Proclamation of December 1, had
given rise to the conditions anticipated by Sir John A,
Macdonald in his letter of November 27, (2) although some

doubt: may exist as to whether the first Provisional Gov-

ernment, formed by Riel immediately following the Proclam-
ation, eﬁjoyedﬂthe confidence of the majority of the inhabe
itants. The formetion of the Provisional Govérnment of
February, however, was the work of the Convention of twenty
English and twenty French elected represéntativea, At a
meeting of thaﬁ body, held on February 10, the vote in favoi
of forming a government was unanimous, with the exception
that the thrée delegates from Poplar Point and High Eluff
refrained froﬁ voting. (3) The membership of the Government
was sufficiently diversified to attract the suppert of the

(1) For proof of the statement.-see Pp. 102-103,

(2) See page 5o above.

(3) New Nation. Feb.18, 1870.
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various factions within the Settlement, having been
composed of the following men:
Presldenthl.'.lvﬁiﬁlll.GO.GOOOQ.'LGuis Riel
Judge of the Supreme Courte......James Ross
Bheriff.esvecensssonesesseessHenry McKenney
COrONer e ciessnesiessaceannnsnsseeaDr. Bird
Postmaster-General..........A.G,B.Bannatyne
Collectors of Customs..........Roger Goulet
- John Sutherland
Secretary of State...ce..veesc..Thomas Bunn
Assistant Secretary of State..Louis Schmidt
&ecretary of the Treasury.....W B.0'Donohue (1)
This was the body which was supported in the elections of
February 26, and which was recagnﬁzea ag the Gavernment
by the Canadian Commissioner, D. A. Smith. (2) Although
the deleg&tes to Ottawa were appointed by the Convention
before the formation of the Provisional Government, they
did not 1eave the District until Warch 23 and 24, and the
Canadian Government in its negotiatiena with them must
have known that they were acting under 1nstructions from
Riel's Council. If this be admitted, then it would follow
that by such negotiations the authorities at Ottawa recog-
nized the de facto Riel administration. Under those cir-
cumstances, and provided it isfnot 'murder' when the state
infl;cta capital punishment, the shooting of Thomas Scott
was an execution'.

(1) Hill. Op. cit. p.278.
(  (2) oliver. Op. cit. p.930
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Professor Martin, who is well known for his extensive
studies on the history of VWestern Canada, has expressed
his opinion of the part played by the Romen Catholiec
clergy at Red River, in the turbulent‘days éf 1869-1870,
in the following séntence:' |

#"The brains of the maveméﬁt; haﬁever, were

not those of Louis Riel; and it would not be
unjust, perhaps, either to the French Metis

or to their guardians in all that was well-
ordered and sustained in the Riel Insurrection
to regard the Metis as the secular arm of the
Church at Red River,"(1) | |

The evidence to support that belief must be circume
stantial‘rather than direct.‘aa no official statements
or dacum@nts have been produced to show just what attitude
the church took toward the lMetis uprising. 1t isvknewn
that Riel was susceptible to religiaus influencesi that
through the influence of Eishop Tache, he was a student for
some years in a Church school in Bastern Canada; that he
was much in the company of Fathéra Richot and Lestané on
his return to Red River; and that they’aeted in an advisory
capacity to him on many occasiohe. often using Father
Richot's houee in 8t. Vital as & meeting place far the
half~breeds.' But‘what‘advice those two priests gave to
Riel, to what extent it was graciously received and acted
upen, and wheﬁher the priesﬁs were carrying through the

orders of those in authérity over them, these are questions

ST

(1) Martin. The First New Province of the Dominion,
C.H.R. Vol.l (1920) p.367.
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upon which oune can only surmise,(l) . On at least one

occasion, when Father Lestanc formed one of the Committee

to plead with him to spare the life of Scott, the advice

of the priest was not accepted.(2) From this incident it

might be inferred that the policy of the clergy was to

eppose the use of'ferce, and some evidence to prove the

correctness of that inference is found in the words of

Gabriel Dumont ,in a speech referring to the events of 1885

"When we armed ourselves the priests lined theme
selves against us. They would not hear us in

confession, neither the men nor the women, nor

SR

(1) The extreme anti-Roman Catholic view of the active

ities of these men is found in the following state
ement made by a Protestant minister, who arrived

in Red River the year following the uprising. "Here
again the writer is aware of the gravity of the.
statement he is making, but he had evidence of the :
clearest kind for his position. A dangerous relig-
ious element in the country - ecclesiastics from
0ld France - whoe had no love for Britain, no love

for Canada, no love for society, no love for peacel

The plotters were in close association with the
half-breeds, dictated their policy, and freely
mingled with the Rebels. One of them was an intime. .
ate friend of the leader of the rebellion, consul-
ted with him in his plans, and exercised a marked
influence on his movements. This same foreign
priest, with Jesuitical cunning, gave close attend-
ance on the sick Governor, and through his family
exercised a constant detrimental power upon the

-enly source of authority in the land. (Bryce. Rem-

arkable History of the Hudson's Bay Company.)
D.463.

(2) Oliver. Op. cit. p.931.
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the ckildren. It was hard for the poor Metis
to see all that; it was most discouraging,"(1l)

The extent to which the Church influenced Riel in the
early stages of the insurractian may never be known, but it
can Be definitely asserted that its influence dwindled from
the time of the return of Bishop Tache to Red River, in
Earch, 1870, Riel seemed to fear that the Eishop was siding
more with Canada then with the Red River Settlers,

"When he (Bishop Tache) pessed in view of Fort
Garry, Riel's soldiers asked their chief for
permission to go and reeeive their Bishop's
blessing,  The President granted same but he,
himself, would not go, and said; "It is not

- His Lordship Tache, it is not the Iishop of

8t, Boniface passing, it is Canada,'"(2)
When Tache returned from Qttawgv@n August 25,.withauﬁ a
written promise of amnesty, Riel felt that his first suspice
ians had been correct, The following day when the soldiers
were arriving at the Fort, Riel's first words when he return=
ed to the Bishop's Palace were;

“Come, my Lerd, and see the soldiers who arrive at

the Fort, Do you believe it now ?" According to

another version, vouchsafed for by his closest

friends, he said:; "It is you who will cause us to
hang,."(3)

(1), Le Peys. Nontreal. July 10, 1915. (quoted by
de Tremaudan in C,H.R, June, 1924, p.151.)

(2) Benoit. Tache. Vol.2 p.59.

(3) de Tremaudan. Louis Riel's Account of the Capture
of Fort Garry. C.H.R. June, 1924. p.151,




107,

CORCLUSIONS,

"From that day, August 23, 1870, Riel seems to
have graduslly lost the confidence which he had
always had in Mgr. Tache and the clergy, and he
finally formed the opinion that they had leagued
themselves with those whom he considered his
enemies to defeat his aim of getting fair autonomy
terms for his country. 'He had not an entire
confidence in the clergy, for, said he, the priests
were the natural flatterers of the governments/

He had frequent outbursts against ¥gr. Tache,
because he had believed the loyalty and promises
of the ministers and stopped the movement of 1870.!
80 is explained the new religion established by
Louis Riel in 1885."(1)

While the church may or may not have taken an importe
ant and active part in the events connected with the diste
urbances at Red River, it avvears to have had a determining
voice in fixing the policy of the Manitoba Act, 1870,
Mention hes been made of the fact that the terms of the Act
were based upon a secret list of rights, drawngup at the
Bishop's Palace, 8t. Bonifaﬁe.ngurther proof of its influ-
ence has been found in the statément that

"The Governor General infofmed the Colonial
Office by cable on April 11, 1870, fifteen

days before the opening of negotiations at
Ottawa between the Dominion Government and the
three delegates from Red River that'Bishop Tache,
vefore leaving Ottawa, expressed himself gquite
satisfied with the terms accorded to himself and
his church". It is reasonable to suppose that

& general understanding had been reached at Qttawa
upon the Archbishop's return from Rome,"(2)

AR

(1) 1vid. p.150.

(2) Mertin. The First Wew Province of the Dominion.
C,H,R.. Vel,l (1920) p.369.
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Upon this assumption mey be explained the inclusion of
Clause 22 in the Manitoba Act, providing for legislation
in regard to schools and not included in the original
List of Rights.

"Settlement of Red River was founded by an indive
idual proprietor under the aegis of a disputed
charter, It was twice destroyed by men of kind-
red race, overwhelmed during its early years by
almost unparalleled disasters, and developed for
two decades under the protection of 2 private fame
ily. It relapsed into the ownership of a monopol~-
istic trading company, which was accused of having
'locked the door upon the settlement, and put the
key in its pocket'; and finally, after a generate-
ion of obscurity, culminating in an inglorious
insurrection, it took its place as one of the most

promising provinces of the Dominion."(1) :

Was there a rebellion at Red River in 1869-1870 ¢
Byidence hﬁs»been adduced herein té_shaw that the 'rebels?
were loyal to CGreat Britain and to the Hudson's Bay Comp-.
.any, and that Canada had no legal authority in the distr-
iet at the time. Therefore, the disturbances, known to
the Metis as "The Trouble", did not constitute a '‘rebellion'.
Wag it even an 'inglorious insurrection' ¢ From the point
of view of the majority of the inhabitants of Red River it
was a worth-while effort to determine the conditions under
which the Pistrict of Assiniboia should become a part of

the Dominion. Had it not been for the 'tragic blunder!

(1) ¥artin. The Red River Settlement. p.l3.
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connected with the shooting of Scott, and for his
greater mistake of raising the ensiéﬂxaf revellion

in the HNorth-West in 1885, Louis Riel would probably
have been known as the champion of self-determination
and Responsible Government for the Province of Ianit-

oba.
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